I~ocone-<eywnship
QNS Y LYANY

POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

AGENDA

February 10, 2025 6:00 p.m.

112 Township Drive | Tannersville, PA 18372
Dial-In Option: 646 558 8656
Meeting ID: 892 102 5946
Passcode: 18372
Zoom Link:
https://lus06web.zoom.us/j/8921025946?pwd=01VtaFVKVEpRWTUvdIFrSHJ1cE1Tdz09

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT

For any individuals wishing to make public comment tonight, please state the spelling of
your name and identify whether you are a taxpayer of Pocono Township.

CORRESPONDENCE
OLD BUSINESS

= Motion to approve the minutes of the January 13, 2025 meeting of the Pocono Township
Planning Commission. (Action Item)

SEWAGE PLANNING MODULES:

WAIVERS OF LAND DEVELOPMENT:

SKETCH PLANS

Bluewave Solar Array - Summit Rd — LDP 1439
Exclusive Pocono Properties — LDP 1422

NEW PLANS

FINAL PLANS UNDER CONSIDERATION


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/8921025946?pwd=Q1VtaFVkVEpRWTUvdlFrSHJ1cE1Tdz09

PRELIMINARY PLANS UNDER CONSIDERATION

Simpson Minor Subdivision (LDP #1426) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 7/8/24 P.C.
meeting with approval deadline of APR. 6, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 3/10/25.
Motion for recommendation of plan approval to the Board of Commissioners. (Action Item)

Tannersville Point Apartments (LDP# 1358) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
6/10/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of March 31, 2024 Deadline for P.C. consideration is
03/10/25 (Possible Action Item)

Brookdale Spa (LDP #1425) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 9/9 24 P.C. meeting
with approval deadline of March 17, 2025 Deadline for P.C. consideration is 3/10/25.
(Possible Action Item)

611 Land Development LLC (LDP #1401) — Dual Brand Hotel — Hotel by Marriot -Plans
administratively accepted at the 4/8/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of April 18, 2025.
Deadline for P.C. consideration is 3/10/25 (Possible Action Item)

Swiftwater Solar Revision — (LDP 1375A) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 1/13/25
P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of April 13, 2025 Deadline for P.C. consideration is 3/10/25.
(Possible Action Item)

1124 Sky View Drive Mono-pine Tower (LDP# 1424) — Plans were administratively accepted at
the 4/8/24 P.C. meeting with approval deadline of June 4, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration
is 5/12/25. (Possible Action Item)

MCTA Transit Facilities Expansion — (LDP 1437) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
12/9/24 P.C. meeting with approval deadline of June 3, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration
is 5/12/25. (Possible Action Item)

Motion to table the following plans (Action Item):

Trap Enterprises Event Center — (LDP 1438) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
1/13/25 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of April 13, 2025 Deadline for P.C. consideration is
3/10/25 (Possible Action Item)

Cranberry Creek Apartments Land Development Plan (LDP# 1369) — Plans were administratively
accepted at the 7/25/22 P.C. meeting. Extension letter request received with approval deadline
of August 4, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 7/14/25. (Possible Action Item)

135 Warner Road — JBAR Pocono LLC (LDP# 1414) — Plans were administratively accepted at
the 2/12/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of September 9, 2025. Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 8/10/25. (Possible Action Item)

Alaska Pete’s Roadhouse Grille (173 Camelback Road) Land Development Plan (LDP# 1387) —
Plans were administratively accepted at the 4/10/23 P.C. meeting. Extension request received with
approval deadline of December 31, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 12/8/25. (Possible
Action Item)

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, CONDITIONAL USE, ET AL, APPLICATIONS



PRIORITY LIST
= Zoning Ordinance, Zoning Map & SALDO Amendments

o Review process will continue with Nanci Sarcinello, Sarcinello Planning & GIS Services on
the 4" Monday of each month. (February 24th will be our next meeting)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
NEW BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENT & ADJOURNMENT



POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Minutes
January 13, 2025

The regular meeting of the Pocono Township Planning Commission was held on Monday,
January 13, 2025 and was opened at 6:00 p.m. by Jeremy Sawicki.

ROLL CALL

Joe Folsom, present; Christina Kauffman, present; Claire Learn, present; Chris Peechatka, present;
Dennis Purcell, absent; Jeremy Sawicki, present; Kyle VanFleet, present.

Planniﬁg Commission Alternates: Bruce Kilby, present., Jordan Merring, present.

IN ATTENDANCE

Amy Montgomery, Twp. Engineer; Leo DeVito, Township Solicitor; Krisann MacDougall, Township
Asst. Secretary.

PUBLIC COMMENT
CORRESPONDENCE
OLD BUSINESS

C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by J. Folsom, to approve the minutes of the December 9,
2024 meeting of the Pocono Township Planning Commission. All in favor. Motion carried.

WAIVERS OF LAND DEVELOPMENT
NEW PLANS

Trap Enterprises Event Center — LDP 1438
C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by D. Purcell, to administratively accept the plans for
review. All in favor. Motion carried.

Swiftwater Solar Revision — LDP 1375A

C. Learn made a motion, seconded by C. Kauffman, to administratively accept the plans for review.
All in favor. Motion carried.

PRELIMINARY PLANS UNDER CONSIDERATION

e Tannersville Point Apartments (LDP# 1358) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
6/10/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of February 28, 2025 (Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 2/10/25) J. Sawicki made a motion, seconded by J. Folsom, to deny the plan
unless an extension is received prior to the next PC meeting. All in favor. Motion carried.

e Brookdale Spa (LDP# 1425) Plans were administratively accepted at the 9/9/24 P.C. meeting
with approval deadline of March 17, 2025. (Deadline for P.C. consideration is 3/10/25)
C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by J. Folsom, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion
carried.




611 Land Development LLC (LDP #1401) — Dual Brand Hotel — Hotel by Marriot -Plans
administratively accepted at the 4/8/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of April 18, 2025.
Deadline for P.C. consideration is 3/10/25 J. Sawicki made a motion, seconded by K. Van
Fleet, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion carried.

Brookstead Apartments (LDP# 1423) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 5/13/24 P.C.
meeting. Approval deadline of March 9, 2025. (Deadline for P.C. consideration is 2/10/25). D.
Purcell made a motion, seconded by C. Kauffman, to recommend the Brookstead Apartment
plan for approval to the BOC. All in favor. Motion carried.

MCTA Transit Facilities Expansion (LDP 1437) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
12/9/24 P.C. meeting with approval deadline of March 3, 2025. (Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 2/10/25). MCTA gave a verbal commitment to extend the review period for 90
days pending a hard copy being emailed out. J. Sawicki made a motion, seconded by K.
VanFleet, to deny the plan unless a written extension is received prior to the next P.C. meeting.
All in favor. Motion carried.

1124 Sky View Drive Mono-pine Tower (LDP #1424) Plans were administratively accepted at the
4/824 P.C. meeting with approval deadline of March 4, 2025. (Deadline for P.C. consideration
is 2/10/25) D. Purcell made a motion, seconded by K. VanFleet, to deny the 1124 Sky View Dr.
Mono-pine Tower plan unless an extension is received prior to the next P.C. meeting. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Simpson Minor Subdivision LDP#1426 — Plans were administratively accepted at the 7/8/24 P.C.
meeting with approval deadline of March 6, 2025. (Deadline for P.C. consideration is 2/10/25).
D. Purcell made a motion, seconded by K. VanFleet, to deny the Simpson Minor Subdivision
unless an extension is received prior to the next P.C. meeting. All in favor. Motion carried.

135 Warner Road — JBAR Pocono LLC (LDP# 1414) — Plans were administratively accepted at
the 2/12/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of March 9, 2025. (Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 2/10/25). D. Purcell made a motion, seconded by K. VanFleet, to deny the 135
Warner Rd. plan unless an extension is received prior to the next P.C. meeting. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Alaska Pete’s Roadhouse Grille (173 Camelback Road) Land Development Plan (LDP# 1387) —
Plans were administratively accepted at the 4/10/23 P.C. meeting. Extension request received with
approval deadline of December 31, 2025. (Deadline for P.C. consideration is 12/8/25). C.
Kauffman made a motion, seconded by C. Peechatka, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion carried.

Cranberry Creek Apartments Land Development Plan (LDP# 1369) — Plans were administratively
accepted at the 7/25/22 P.C. meeting. Extension letter request received with approval deadline
of February 11, 2025. (Deadline for P.C. consideration is 1/13/25). C. Kauffman made a
motion, seconded by C. Peechatka, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion carried.

PRIORITY LIST

Zoning Ordinance, Zoning Map & SALDO Amendments
o The review process will continue with Nanci Sarcinello, Sarcinello Planning & GIS Services

on the 4" Monday of each month and will continue on Thursday, January 30, 2025 due to
a scheduling conflict.

PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by D. Purcell, to adjourn the meeting at 6:30 p.m. All in favor.

Motion carried.




D -
4. '\. '~ YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

January 29, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: SUMMIT ROAD SOLAR ARRAY SKETCH PLAN REVIEW NO. 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1439, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R1090

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed a review of a sketch plan submission for the above
referenced project. The submitted information consists of the following items.

o Cover letter prepared by Bohler Engineering PA, LLC, dated January 7, 2025.

® Pocono Township Land Development Application with Professional Services Escrow
Agreement, fees, and W9,

* Recorded Memorandum of Option Agreement for Land Lease, Instrument #202417984.

° Recorded Memorandum of Option Agreement for Land Lease, Instrument #202418102.

° Concept Plan (2 sheets) prepared by Bohler Engineering PA, LLC, dated October 10, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, BlueWave, is proposing to develop the existing property (Tax Parcel ID 12.12.1.27)
located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District along Summit Road, across from Dyson
Road. The existing property has an area of 78.04 acres and consists of steep slopes, woodlands, and
wetland areas.

The proposed development includes the construction of a “solar energy collection system” including
associated racking and electrical equipment, fencing, access roads and equipment areas, transformers,
landscaping, and stormwater management. Two (2) arrays are proposed with a total of 17,112 modules
and access will be via two (2) separate gravel driveways from Summit Road.

Based upon our review of the above information, we have the following comments and/or
recommendations for your consideration.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1. In accordance with Section 470-17.B.(1) and Schedule A, essential services buildings and
structures are permitted within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 36106252999 W 6106252969 [ tandmassociates.com




&

o

N

v

§ Pocono Township Planning Commission
] . . g 9 _ Summit Road Solar Array Sketch-Plan No. 1
= . T oy yr § - o F January 29, 2025

: =y - = Page 2

I

Pt -~

Atrticle II defines Essential Services as follows:

Includes the provision of gas, electrical, steam, communication, telephone, sewer,
waste material, water, public safety and other similar services. The facilities
required to provide such services shall consist of:

A. Limited facilities including equipment such as poles, towers, wires, mains,
drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, fire alarm boxes, police call boxes,
traffic signals, hydrants and other similar equipment which does not require
enclosure within a building or which can be constructed within a public right-
of-way.

B. Major facilities including equipment which requires enclosure within a
building or construction on its own site such as gas storage areas, solid waste
substations, substations, telephone exchanges and telephone booths.

The Zoning Officer shall determine whether the proposed “solar energy collection system” is
considered an essential service and is permitted within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning
District.

In accordance with Section 470-17.C.(1) and Schedule A, the maximum impervious area is 80%.
The proposed impervious coverage shall be provided on the Land Development Plan. The
coverage shall include all gravel areas, racking support poles, substations, equipment pads, etc.

Parking and off-street truck loading areas shall be provided in accordance with Section 470-34.
The Applicant shall address the need Jor parking and loading areas.

In accordance with Section 470-57.E, Essential Services, Screen Planting, “the required equipment
shall be screened in accordance with the requirements of this chapter and of Chapter 390,
Subdivision and Land Development”. The required landscaping shall be provided on the Land
Development Plan.

In accordance with Section 470-5 7.G, Essential Services, “in residential districts, newly permitted
essential services facilities shall not include the exterior storage of vehicles or equipment used in
the maintenance of any utility”. The Applicant shall address the need for parking and loading
areas.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

6.

In accordance with Section 390-1 5.D.(3), “After preparing the existing resources and site analysis,
applicants should arrange for a site inspection of the property by the Planning Commission and
other municipal officials, and shall distribute copies of said site analysis at that on-site meeting.
Applicants, their site designers, and the landowner are encouraged to accompany the Planning
Commission. The purpose of the visit is to familiarize local officials with the property's existing
conditions and special features, to identify potential site design issues, and to provide an informal
opportunity to discuss site design concepts, including the general layout of designated open lands
(if applicable), and potential locations for proposed buildings and street alignments. Comments
made by municipal officials or their staff and consultants shall be interpreted as being only
suggestive. It shall be understood by all parties that no formal recommendations can be offered,



10.

1L

Pocono Township Planning Commission

? Summit Road Solar Array Sketch Plan No. 1
i January 29, 2025

i‘f, Page 3

E

and no official decisions can be made, at the site inspection.” The Applicant shall discuss the need

Jor a site visit with the Township.

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(6)(e)[2][a], “no more than 35% of the original ground cover
within any designated steep slope area on the property may be disturbed by grading, filling or other
means. At least 65% of the original ground cover must remain undisturbed during the
establishment, alteration or maintenance the property.” It appears steep slopes will be disturbed
with the development. The Land Development Plan shall include a chart providing the existing
area, the disturbed area, and the protected area of the existing steep slope.

In accordance with Section 390-48.H.(1), “wherever there exists a dedicated or platted portion of
a road or alley along a boundary of the tract being subdivided or developed the remainder of said
road or alley shall be platted to the width required by this chapter based on the classification of the
road within the proposed development™. Summit Road is considered a Local Road and shall meet
the standards of a Local Road listed in Table 390-48-] . The Land Development Plan shall include
the existing and proposed ri ght-of-way and cartway widths of Summit Road.

In accordance with Sections 390-48.T.(11) and 390-48.T.( 13)(c), all access driveways shall be
paved in their entirety in accordance with design specifications of § 390-59.D. The Sketch Plan
shows two (2) gravel driveways. The Land Development Plan shall include paved driveways as
required by this Section.

In accordance with Section 390-48.T.(13)(b), “access drive entrances into all nonresidential and
nonagricultural use properties shall be no less than 24 feet in width, shall not exceed 36 feet in
width at the road line, unless provided with a median divider, and shall be clearly defined by
curbing. The curbs of these driveway entrances shall be rounded with a minimum radius of 20 feet
from where they intersect a road”.

The Bulk Requirements Chart references a 12-foot wide minimum and 20-foot wide maximum
driveway width per Section 375-18.H of the Streets and Sidewalks Ordinance. Per Section 375-
13.C, “driveways for nonresidential uses, major subdivisions and land developments. Any
driveway or access road which is intended to serve any proposed use which is considered a major
subdivision or a land development, or is intended to serve an existing or proposed nonresidential
use, shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 390, Subdivision and Land Development, of
the Township of Pocono, for driveways and roads. "

The Sketch Plan proposes a 20-foot wide gravel driveway. The driveway width shall be revsied
as required by Section 390-48.T.(13)(b) of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance.

In accordance with Section 390-48.AA., “sidewalk and road crosswalks may be required where
necessary to provide proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities and
common areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-of-
way immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to
accommodate road trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be constructed
in accord with the most current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans with Disabilities Act
standards.” The Applicant shall discuss the need Jor sidewalk along Summit Road with the
Township.



14.

135,

16.

17,

18.

S, Pocono Township Planning Commission
ﬁ Summit Road Solar Array Sketch Plan No. |

January 29, 2025
Page 4

In accordance with Section 390-50.B., a stormwater drainage and management plan shall be
required for all major subdivisions and all land developments, and all subdivisions and land
developments shall comply with Chapter 365, Stormwater Management. Stormwater management
in accordance with these requirements shall be addressed on JSuture Land Development Plans.

In accordance with Section 390-51.A, “all soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall meet
the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shal] comply with
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control.” 4// proposed development shall meet the
requirements of Chapter 102. Since the proposed earth disturbance will exceed one (1) acre, an
NPDES Permit, and a Determination of Adequacy letter will be required from the Monroe County
Conservation District and/or Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection.

In accordance with Section 390-55., a landscape plan meeting the requirements of this section shall
be prepared for all land developments and major subdivisions; and no land development or major
subdivision shall be finally approved until all landscaping has been installed or guaranteed in
accord with this chapter.” 4 Landscape Plan is required for any future Land Development Plan
submission. It is noted that a landscape buffer is shown along the shared property line with Parcel
ID 12636401279232. A buffer along all areas between the solar arrays and existing residential
properties shall be provided as required.

In accordance with Section 390-56. outdoor lighting for the proposed improvements must be
designed/provided as outlined in this Section. Lighting shall be addressed with any future Land
Development Plan submission.

In accordance with Section 390-57, “if a proposed subdivision or land development includes any
area that is suspected of being a wetland, then a professional wetland delineation may be required.
The Township may require that the applicant obtain a jurisdictional determination from the United
States Army Corps of Engineers. Until such time as the Board of Commissioners has approved
application, the wetland limits shall be visibly identified in the field.” Al existing wetlands shall
be identified and protected as required by this Section.

In accordance with Section 390-58.C.(1), 2), “the proposal for common open space, installation
of recreation facilities and/or fees shall be offered for review by the Planning Commission and the
Pocono Township Park and Recreation Committee™. The Land Development Plan shall provide
the address the required common open space and recreation facilities or provide the required fee
in-lieu-of.

Off-street parking and loading shall comply with Section 390-59. The Applicant shall address the
need for parking and loading areas. All parking shall be in compliance with Section 390-59.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Future Land Development Plan submissions shall provide Stormwater Management in accordance with
Chapter 365, Stormwater Management.

19.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(6)(a), “wetlands shall be identified in accord with the 1987
United States Army Corps of Engineers Manual for Identifying and Delineating Wetlands, as



N
N

21.

§ Pocono Township Planning Commission
| Summit Road Solar Array Sketch Plan No. 1
January 29, 2025

Page 5

amended, and properly flagged and surveyed on site to ensure they are protected”. All existing
wetlands shall be identified and protected as required by this Section.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(6)(b), “a fifty-foot buffer, measured perpendicular to and
horizontally from the edge of the delineated wetland, shall be maintained for all wetlands, with the
exception of the Cranberry Bog, where the buffer shall be 75 feet measured perpendicular to and
horizontally from the edge of the Cranberry Bog. In addition, where the 300 feet of land adjacent
to the edge of a delineated wetland has an average upland slope greater than 5%, the minimum
buffer width shall be increased by four feet for each percent of slope at or above 5%, subject to a
maximum cumulative buffer of 100 feet.” The Sketch Plan shows d 20-foot wide buffer around
the existing wetlands. The buffer shall be revised to provide a minimum width of 50-feet as
required.  The 20-foot distance referenced in Section 390-57.E of the Subdivision and Land
Development Ordinance is for protection of the existing wetlands for a fence, not a buffer.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1(6)(b)[1], “Permitted activities/development. Stormwater
conveyance required by the municipality or other body or agency having jurisdiction; buffer
maintenance and restoration; the correction of hazardous conditions; stream crossings permitted
by DEP and passive unpaved stable trails shall be permitted within the wetland buffer. No other
earth disturbance, grading, filling, buildings, structures, new construction, or development shall be

permitted within the wetland buffer.” appears proposed disturbance will be located within the
required buffer discussed in Comment 20. This shall be addressed.

If you should have any questions, please call me.

\

incerely,

SR

Jon S\Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/arm

CC:

Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager

Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer

Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor

Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP

Paradise Summit, LLC — Property Owner

Ben Vanderlan, BlueWave Project Development, LLC — Applicant
Colin Section, Swiftwater Pond, LLC - Applicant

Jeffrey Beavan, P.E., Bohler Engineering PA, LLC — Applicant’s Engineer
Mary Bachert, Bohler Engineering PA, LLC — Applicant’s Engineer
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates

Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R 1090\Correspondence\Comment Letters\Sketch Plan\Summit Road Solar Amay_Sketch Plan Review No. 1.docx



axe s

et B
s vy v
\\mudzom oy E T R KAm L
£ virre s P i
- s v » [
w0
Vd "ALNNOD JOUNOK v srveon o sTecom
SIHSHMOL OHOJ0d
avaams. (v AvyyY) NOLL r NOILLYWSOINI
ANIWGOTIAZO
a AVNYY ¥VTOS AVNNY ¥VI0S
977 'INIWdO13A3a =
193r0Nd 18 o< = o ey G o
- S ey T
vou r = s it e
G - e Tz,
= e
NYId L il - s ez AN R vatr fo
) - 30 ircza s S
= - o e | Tyt s )
= - e e | coamerirant s
= - | tomoirant o
==
S T Soemavimint |

~ataun

TSzt |

T
1
1

)
vt ATmbvE A
Tt e 53moes

e are
i B
Fvesa

e

NOILYWHOINI HYINMO ILNVIIdIV

o 0 S 35
N L0033 T L % st

—_——————

378V.L ONINOZ

i a0 auncs

SNOISINSY o#« s el :
o [
N=2
mmmm - -2
P s) \
S

S MUNILLY TITMIED LTI o ST L ALYTRE 9 kAT D778 4 DO NGRS SHALHDS OISO 43
D00 ML) U0 ONPGT ¥ S 7T 31

1O W0 1Y LTI 0 8 A T Vb VAL Y135 VTILINO WG4 T3 e Sk M) S943
TR TV RS AT TTY 15 LN 0044 AL SIL Y ONY SO B TVt

2 MUY 53018 VAL THPTY S €ULANS 3193 GTSGSSY 30 AV P ONY CLUIROITIA L) 1 SNEOMASY TNy
MINLGTN TIVIE A7) T CoRTVI00 UL (53457 WP LUIYRISVIA 1 (NOIT) 41 A8 ATII0S DAINI DY 1YL
TN 1) oY ST S ST VTN 4TS PAIYBTS LATAH) IEASI0 ¥ SSALNSD 1R T2 1T ML
TN 800 IO TR ALNYA WAL 1 T35S ATV OOV ANLSRS (BT SV LT oL

S3LON NVTd Ld3INOD

(s




VIR - 1Y DO

¢00-2

e Lame

§$3d0oTS

/¥4371H09

W
¥4 'ALHNOT FOUMOVS

GHSHMOL ONO0d
‘avou w3
LENOTINIG
AVIUY 4¥I0S T00UOH
‘
I INIHJOTIAIC T
1933rodd Iavmana ] i 3 A
™ e ot
o4 ) [ oy
e wn oLy
NVId L e i L) A 0
- . e vEraurt
v - P TR EE TS
~
e ]
e e SANIWININOIY WING
ATINO s3soddnd oot ga vy
" G ey ———
L4IINO? ¥HO: e mers
e ——— P
I am R B et oo
e T T Feisre
SIS LA
et e ey NOLLYWYOINI YINMO ILNVIITddV
el B e A
o ey e e
T e i oy s v
e e s R A e R
Pt 3F78v.L ONINOZ
Ry
e
=
]
W Teon Dwes
ostes T8 A . v
dViN NOILVDIOT

I
4 ot

1070003530 S¥0 APVAO o ¥ 1A
PR S8 1ALV L LIS O W AV LY0 STOALOOLS 34 4D SA2NTD S VS5 LANOZ ORI SIALIRALS S 31w T
3 54N TN DI P51 0 T30 P34 38 SSATYNY TONYTIDING DNNT ¥ 1YWL G300 Mo A RIS 4 1
L0810 L3S T N3O0 373 THCHLIOOY 40 6 YRN0 M MILIY JONVAG OL 193375
0P AT S TS 30119 U0 ONY HUAD 41 48 Ml 1T SO J0 MM TV T ST DU
23391 BLLY A3FUA0) DL 0L GIOATH 3R L1 HILYIIIO 80 NO€) OISV Ty M3 NAIHS SHALIKE PLSTE3 1L
N300 M LONALSNID UG SMOIGT ¥ 5Y OXTALN 74
LOMTY AL TRV UL PN L M T35 SIS0 NCAL YIS TRk WNLAIONOD G D 4Y.I3Hd 1M LTS
TINTSN TSI AMYSSIIN TIV 40 AN Ctid SHL 4113V COFY ELNINOD) THVA LY
LA B 1 ALARS MU LAY GSSISSY 30 A WO KYD GNY 1NV LON 51 S AN THY-ATAIY
TN T¥15 AT TN ASYITOL 193450 UM ALTMISYI] Dk INNID 34l AB A1TI05 03 KIND OW L VIR
YD Y TN 3 ANINTIFA | 157 DALV LETM NASI0 ¥ S AAINGR WM I [T 31 ¢
/ TR 17 LA 0 ALY ALV 40 HOLS1 35V ATTT05 ONY KTUORIS TRV T4 SYM LIS owl

OWINIIMIONI WILTNHOT QY UAD Tus

/d3THO4g

tarien s S31ON NVTd LdIINOD

C




N\
A
4.'§ | YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

January 14, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: SIMPSON MINOR SUBDIVISION 519-520 POST HILL ROAD

FINAL MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEW NO. 3
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1426, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0750

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our third review of the above referenced project.
The submitted information consists of the following items.

Response letter prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated January 9, 2025;

Land Description — Proposed Lot 1, prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated January
9, 2025;

Mapcheck Lot 1, prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated June 27, 2024;

Land Description — Proposed Lot 2, prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated January
9, 2025;

Mapcheck Lot 2 (Residue), prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated June 27, 2024;
Land Description — R.O.W. Dedication (East side of Post Hill Road), prepared by Barry Isett &
Associates, Inc., dated January 9, 2025

Mapcheck — ROW Dedication — East Side of Road, prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc.,
dated June 27, 2024;

Land Description — R.O.W. Dedication (East side of Post Hill Road), prepared by Barry Isett &
Associates, Inc., dated January 9, 2025

Mapcheck — ROW Dedication — West Side of Road, prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc.,
dated June 27, 2024,

Minor Subdivision Plan entitled “Subdivision of Lands of Donald Simpson”, prepared by
Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated May 16, 2024, last revised January 9, 2025.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant is proposing a minor subdivision of a property located at 519-520 Post Hill Road,
between Laurel Lane and Post Hill Court. The property is located within the R-1, Residential Zoning

District.

Existing Parcel 12.6.1.7, consists of 19.05 acres and is bisected by Post Hill Road. The existing lot
contains multiple dwellings, one (1) on the east side of Post Hill Road and two (2) on the west.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 I 610.625.2999 [l 610.625.2969 tandmassociates.com



4% Pocono Township Planning Commission

Simpson Minor Subdivision 519-520 Post Hill Road
Minor Subdivision Plan Review #3

January 14, 2025

Page 2

The submitted plan proposes to subdivide the parcel along Post Hill Road, creating Lot 1 to the east with
1.75 acres and an existing house. The remainder of the parcel to the west of Post Hill Road would be
Lot 2 with an area of 17.30 acres and two (2) existing dwellings. No construction is proposed.

A variance from the minimum lot size for Lot 1 was received from the Zoning Hearing Board on
September 27, 2024.

Based upon our review of the above information and our previous review letter dated January 7, 2025,
we find all of our previous comments have been satisfactorily addressed.

If you should have any questions, please call me.

Towx&ip Engineer

JST/arm

cc: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Cody McCuean, SIT — Barry Isett & Associates, Applicant’s Surveyor
Donald Simpson — Owner/Applicant
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0750\Correspondence\Review Lelters\Simpson Minor Subdivision Plan Review No.3.docx



" YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

February 3, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: BROOKDALE SPA - 2436 BACK MOUNTAIN DRIVE
PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW NO. 2
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1425, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0680

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed a review of the Preliminary/Final Land Development
Plan Application for Brookdale Spa. The submitted information consists of the following items.

* Response letter to the Land Development Review prepared by RKR Hess, dated December 18, 2024.

* Response letter to the Stormwater Management Review prepared by RKR Hess, dated December 18,
2024.

e  Waiver Requests.

® Zoning Determination email from S. McGlynn dated July 15, 2024.

* PADEP Completeness Letter for Ch. 105 Permit dated October 4, 2024.

* Pocono Township Fire Chief Meeting Summary dated October 10, 2024.

e PHMC Response Letter dated November 18, 2024.

e Closure Reports (Overall Net Boundary, Overall Boundary, Stream Easement Lot 2, Utility
Easement Lot 1, Utility Easement Lot 3, and Wastewater Treatment Plant Easement).

* Email correspondence from PennDOT regarding the Traffic Analysis Report dated November 25,
2024,

e Well Site Survey correspondence from PADEP dated August 7, 2024,
* Pocono Township Well Permit dated September 27, 2024.

* Subdivision of Land of Edmund C. and Lucy Danisch prepared by Timothy D. Hydrusko dated
January 27, 1987.

e Sewer Pump Station Design prepared by RKR Hess, dated August 2024, last revised December 2024.

¢ Geotechnical Engineering Report for Brookdale Subdivision — Lot 2, prepared by Geo-Technology
Associates, Inc., dated August 29, 2024, last revised December 16, 2024.

* Main Building Plan and Elevation prepared by Schoonover & Vanderhoof Architects, LLC, 3 sheets,
dated December 10, 2024.

* Employee Housing Plan and Elevation prepared by Schoonover & Vanderhoof Architects, LLC, 2
sheets, dated November 25, 2024.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 Bl 6106252999 Wl 6106252969 K tandmassociates.com



Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 2 of 20

* Post Construction Stormwater Management (PCSM) & Conveyance Calculations Module 2 prepared
by RKR Hess, dated August 30, 2024, last revised December 18,2024.

* Brookdale Spa Land Development Plan set prepared by RKR Hess, 50 sheets, dated August 30, 2024,
last revised December 18, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, Brookdale Enterprises, LLC, has submitted a plan proposing the Brookdale Spa Land
Development on the southern side of Back Mountain Road, west of the intersection of Dyson and Brookdale
Roads. The existing property, Lot 2 of the Brookdale Subdivision, is located within the RD, Recreation Zoning
District and consists of a single parcel (Tax ID No. 12/11/ 1/32-4). The property has an area of 31.59 acres and
consists of mostly woodland areas with steep slopes, the Scot Run watercourse, and wetlands.

The site is proposed to be developed with a Nordic style Spa which consists of outdoor thermal and
hydrothermal amenities as well as a 2-story 35,000 s.f. building with traditional spa services, restaurant,
reception area, retail spaces, and locker rooms. The plans also propose a 2-story 50-bed employee housing
building and a maintenance building. The previously submitted narrative states that the spa can accommodate
400 to 525 people and will have up to 55 staff members. Spa services are booked for 4-hour sessions. The
plans propose 340 parking spaces, including 9 handicap spaces, 3 bus parking spaces, and 4 off-street loading
spaces. Access to the development will be via a driveway taking access from Back Mountain Road. An
existing driveway access at the west end of the property is proposed to remain, but not be improved. The plan
also depicts above ground and underground stormwater management facilities.

The project is proposed to be served by on-lot water and central sewage disposal. The proposed sewer system
consists of a gravity collection system which conveys flows to an onsite pump station. This pump station, with
a 5 Hp grinder pump, will discharge through a 4” HDPE force main to the existing Brookdale Resort
Wastewater Treatment Facility. The project narrative indicates a total flow from domestic sources of 18,550
gpd.

In accordance with Section 470-19.B.(1)(b) and the 470 Attachment 1 Zoning Use Schedule Commercial
indoor and outdoor recreational and entertainment uses, including restaurants, are permitted in the RD District.

The project site is located within Districts A and B-1 Stormwater Management District of the Brodhead-
McMichaels Watershed. The receiving water is the Pocono Creek, which has a Chapter 93 classification of
High-Quality, Cold-Water Fishery with Migratory Fishes (HQ, CWF/MF).

The Land Development Plan was accepted for review by the Pocono Township Planning Commission at its
meeting held on September 9, 2024.

The following comments are planning related and reflect the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and
Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance. A technical review including comments related to the
Township Stormwater Management Ordinance will be provided under separate cover.

Based on our review of the above information and our previous review letter dated October 9, 2024, we offer
the following comments and/or recommendations for your consideration.



i\ Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 3 of 20

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1.-2.

3.

4,

Previous Comments 1-2 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 470-121, no building, structure, or sign shall be erected, constructed,
moved, demolished, added to, or structurally altered, nor shall any use of any land, building structure,
or sign be changed or expanded, without a zoning permit therefor issued by the Zoning Officer. No
such permit shall be issued except in conformity with the provisions of this chapter; and:

a. The applicant supplying satisfactory evidence, where applicable, that the property and the
proposed use thereof in compliance of the Sewage Facilities Act of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by the Pennsylvania Department
of Environmental Protection.” All approvals required by the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection shall be provided to the T ownship.

b. The applicant supplying, where applicable, stormwater management plans approved by the
Pocono Township Board of Commissioners in accordance with the applicable Pocono
Township stormwater management ordinances, and an erosion and sedimentation control plan
approved by the applicable governmental body or agency charged with that responsibility, with
respect to any proposed construction, excavation, or other earthmoving activity. All associated
stormwater management plans, erosion control plans and approvals shall be provided.

(Previous Comment 3) The response letter acknowledges these requirements.

Previous Comment 4 satisfied.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Note that the Applicant is requesting waivers from SALDO requirements as discussed in Comments 17,

25, 26, 28, 32, 52, 54, 59, 61, 65, 69, 72, 73, 75, 87, and 88. The waiver requested in Comment 21 was

granted by the Board of Commissioners on November 18, 2024.

5.-10. Previous Comments 5-10 satisfied.

1.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(7), Supporting documents and information, “Water supply
information. In the case of individual on-lot wells, information documenting water table depth and
potential for affecting the groundwater supply. In the case of community systems:
(a) A statement from a professional engineer of the type and adequacy of any community water
supply system proposed to serve the project.
(d) Privately owned central system. A statement setting forth the proposed ownership of the system
and responsibility for operation and maintenance.
(e) A copy of any application for any permit, license or certificate required by DEP or the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission for the construction and operation of any proposed

central water supply system. Land development plan approval shall be conditioned on the
issuance of said permits by PA DEP and/or PA PUC.”

The required information shall be provided. (Previous Comment 11 ) The response letter states, “A
permit to drill the well has been issued by Pocono Township and well drilling is being coordinated



% I§ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

' Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2

February 3, 2025

Page 4 of 20

with DEP and Pocono Township. The proposed water system will remain private, owned and
operated by the property owner and only serve this lot. A licensed operator will operate the water
system on behalf of the owner. Regulation by the PUC is not required. An application for a non-
community, non-transient water supply permit will be submitted to DEP Jor the proposed water
system. Copies of the application and permit will be provided to the Township as available.”

12, In accordance with Section 390-29.7.(9), supporting documents to be submitted include “A list of any
public utility, environmental or other permits required and if none are required, a statement to that
effect. The Township may require a professional engineer's certification of such list.” In addition, and
in accordance with Section 390-29.J.(19), “All required state or federal environmental and other
permits.” The Design Engineer shall submit the required list of required permits/approvals to the
Township. The following outside agency approvals are required.:

a. Monroe County Planning Commission

b. Monroe County Conservation District/Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection
— NPDES Permit

¢. Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection — Sewage Facilities Planning Module,
Water Supply Permit
PADEP/USACE — Ch. 105 Small Projects Joint Permit

e. Pocono Township Fire Department — Meeting summary notes of 10/10/24 received.

(Previous Comment 12) The response letter acknowledges these requirements and a permits table
has been added to the cover sheet.

13 In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(10), the Applicant shall provide “Confirmation that the soil
erosion and sedimentation control plan has been accepted for review by the Monroe County
Conservation District. (See also §390-51.)" Submissions to, correspondence with, and permit from the

Monroe County Conservation District shall be provided. (Previous Comment 13) The response letter
acknowledges this requirement.

14. Previous Comment 14 satisfied.

15. In accordance with Section 390-32.B and Section 390-41, no final plan shall be signed by the Board
of Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds until:
All improvements required by this chapter are installed to the specifications contained in Article VI of

this chapter and other Township requirements and such improvements are certified by the applicant's
engineer; or

Proposed developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with §390-35 and the

Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended, have been accepted by the
Board of Commissioners.

The Applicant shall submit a construction cost estimate Jor the proposed site improvements in order
to determine the required escrow amount for the developer’s agreement. A developer’s agreement and

performance guarantee will be required prior to plan recordation. (Previous Comment 15) The
response letter acknowledges this requirement.



16.

17.

18.

/7

Pocono Township Planning Commission
Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2

February 3, 2025
Page 5 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-38.A and Section 390-38.B, the developer shall provide to the
satisfaction of the Board of Commissioners, and prior to final plan approval, evidence of the provision,
including a plan, for the succession of ownership and responsibility for the operation and maintenance
of development improvements.” The required documentation and agreement(s) shall be provided to
the Township. (Previous Comment 16) The response letter acknowledges this requirement.

In accordance with Section 390-38.C.(3), “Any improvements which will remain private. In the case
where roads, drainage facilities, a central sewage treatment system or central water supply, or any other
improvements are to remain private, the developer shall provide for the establishment of an escrow
fund in accord with §390-35A to guarantee the operation and maintenance of the improvements. Said
fund shall be established on a permanent basis with administrative provisions approved by the Board
of Commissioners. The amount of said fund shall be 15% of the construction cost of the system as
verified by the Township Engineer. The maintenance and operation of the improvements and the
administration of any required maintenance fund account shall be clearly established as the joint
responsibility of the owner(s) of each structure or dwelling unit served by such system. Such
responsibility and the mechanism to accomplish same shall be established by deed covenants and
restrictions which shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Commissioners.” An operation and
maintenance agreement and guarantee shall be required for the stormwater management facilities,
sewage system, and water supply. (Previous Comment 17) The response letter acknowledges the
requirement for operation and maintenance agreements. A waiver has been requested from the
provision of an escrow fund for the maintenance and operation of the stormwater, sanitary sewer,
and water improvements. The justification states, in part, “This requirement for a guaranteed
maintenance fund is appropriate where common facilities are provided by a developer and lots or
portions of the project are conveyed to other owners who will be responsible for the long term
maintenance of the facilities when the developer is gone. It this case, entity responsible for the
operation and maintenance of the required improvements is the entity who owns the property.
Because of this, we request the operation and maintenance requirements be clearly documented in
agreements with the property owner but the requirement for financial security for operation and

maintenance of required site improvements be waived.” The Board of Commissioners must make
this determination.

In accordance with Section 390-46.A., “Protection of vegetation from mechanical injury. Where
earthwork, grading, or construction activities will take place in or adjacent to woodlands, old fields or
other significant vegetation or site features, the Township may require that the limit of disturbance be
delineated, and vegetation protected through installation of temporary fencing or other approved
measures. Such fencing shall be installed prior to commencing of, and shall be maintained throughout,
the period of construction activity.” The Erosion & Sediment Control Plans shall be revised to show
tree protection fence along the limit of disturbance lines and/or along the dripline of the trees to be
preserved and included within the Construction Sequence. (Previous Comment 18) The response
letter states “The delineation of the limit of disturbance is proposed to be delineated with one-inch
durable nylon webbing. The rocky surface on the site makes the installation and maintenance of a

construction fence difficult. This is noted on the ESC plans (Notes, No. 1).” A detail of the proposed
webbing shall be added to the plans.

19.-20. Previous Comments 19-20 satisfied.



=\
/4
//4

21.

22.-24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 6 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-48.H.(1), “wherever there exists a dedicated or platted portion of a
road or alley along a boundary of the tract being subdivided or developed the remainder of said road
or alley shall be platted to the width required by this chapter based on the classification of the road
within the proposed development.” As noted in the Sketch Plan review, Back Mountain Road is a
Collector Road. Minimum design standards are a 60’ right-of-way, 20’ travel way, and 28’ cartway
with shoulders. The plans appear to show a 60 proposed ultimate right-of-way, a 19’ existing travel
way, and a 20.6’ existing cartway. Therefore, the plans shall be revised to reflect the required travel
way and cartway along the property frontage to meet the ordinance requirements. (Previous
Comment 21) This requirement was waived by the Board of Commissioners on November 18, 2024.

Previous Comments 22-24 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-48.T.(13)(a), “The access drive within the legal right-of-way of the
public road, or for a distance of at least 20 feet from the edge of the cartway, whichever is greater, shall
not have a grade in excess of 4%. The grade of any access drive shall not exceed 10%.” A profile shall
be added to the plans must demonstrate compliance with this requirement. (Previous Comment 25)
A waiver has been requested to permit the access drive slope to be 12%. The justification states “The
proposed grade of the driveway of 12% is consistent with the grades allowable for a local road. The
12% grade is necessary to minimize grading and environmental impacts necessary to access the
developable portion of the site from the location on Back Mountain Road suitable for driveway
access based on the required design requirements.” The Request for Modification shall be revised

to reference the correct ordinance section (13) instead of (12). We have no objection to this waiver
request.

Per Section 390-48.T.(13)(b), “Access drive entrances into all nonresidential and nonagricultural use
properties shall be no less than 24 feet in width, shall not exceed 36 feet in width at the road line, unless
provided with a median divider, and shall be clearly defined by curbing. The curbs of these driveway
entrances shall be rounded with a minimum radius of 20 feet from where they intersect a road.” Radii
dimensions must be added to the driveway entrance at Back Mountain Road as required by the
ordinance. Additionally, the “road line” is defined as being at the right-of-way line; therefore, the
proposed driveway is 50 feet wide at that point and does not meet the ordinance requirement. A waiver
request has been submitted. The justification states that the width is required to accommodate the
turning movements for a WB-62 truck. (Previous Comment 26) Radii which meet the ordinance
requirement have been added to the plans. A waiver has been requested to permit the width to be 41
Jfeet at the right-of-way line. The justification states “A waiver is requested to allow a driveway width
necessary to meet the appropriate standards for the required truck access to the site and provide
pavement markings without a centerline median divider.” We recommend a mountable median
divider be added to the driveway to clearly delineate and separate the ingress and egress lanes while
still allowing for the required truck accessibility.

Per Section 390-48.T.(14), “Concrete aprons shall be provided for all access drives with concrete

sidewalks.” 4 concrete apron must be provided for the driveway at Back Mountain Road. (Previous
Comment 27)

Per Section 390-48.W.(1), “Cuts and fills. The maximum slope of any earth embankment or excavation
shall not exceed one foot vertical to three feet horizontal unless stabilized by a retaining wall or
cribbing, except as approved by the Board of Commissioners for special conditions.” It is noted the



29.

30.

31

32.

wl/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 7 of 20

proposed embankments along the access drive and throughout the site are shown to be 2:1. A waiver
has been requested to permit the 2:1 slopes. The justification states that erosion control matting will
be provided and the stability of the slopes will be documented in a geotechnical report. The submitted
geotechnical report indicates that slopes greater than 3H:1V will require additional engineering
evaluation; therefore, the “additional engineering evaluation” supporting the waiver request must be
provided. (Previous Comment 28) An updated geotechnical report has been provided. The waiver
Justification states “The NPDES standards provide for grading to be stabilized with vegetation up to
slopes to 2 horizontal to 1 vertical (2:1). Slopes 3:1 and over require erosion control matting to aid
in the establishment of vegetation. To minimize the impact to existing vegetated area, we are
requesting to grade proposed slopes to a (2:1) slope using the required erosion control matting to
establish the vegetation or provide another stable surface. The stability of these slopes is documented
in the geotechnical report prepared for the site.” We have no objection to the requested waiver.

Per Section 390-48.AA., “Sidewalks; crosswalks. Sidewalks and road crosswalks may be required
where necessary to provide proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities
and common areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-of-
way immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to accommodate
road trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be constructed in accord with the
most current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans with Disabilities Act standards.” Sidewalks
are required to be provided along Back Mountain Road. (Previous Comment 29) The response letter

requests that the Township confirm that offsite sidewalks are not required for this project. The
Board of Commissioners must make this determination.

Per Section 390-49.A.(4), monuments shall be set at all outbound locations where permanent
monuments did not exist at the time of the perimeter survey unless site conditions preclude the
installation and the missing monument shall be noted on the final plan. The Plans must be revised to
reflect the required monuments at each change of direction along the outbound of the property.

(Previous Comment 30) No existing monumentation exists at the southwestern corner of the site.
A monument is required to be set at this location.

Previous Comment 31 satisfied.

Per Section 390-50.D.(5), “Embankment slope. The maximum slope of the earthen detention basin
embankments shall be four horizontal to one vertical.” The proposed basins show interior side slope
grades of 3:1 (33%) and exterior side slopes of 2:1 (50%). A waiver has been requested to permit the
2:1 slopes. The justification states that erosion control matting will be provided and the stability of
the slopes will be documented in a geotechnical report. The submitted geotechnical report indicates
that slopes greater than 3H:1V will require additional engineering evaluation; therefore, the
additional engineering evaluation” supporting the waiver request must be provided. (Previous
Comment 32) An updated geotechnical report has been provided. The waiver Jjustification states
“The NPDES standards provide for grading to be stabilized with vegetation up to slopes to 2
horizontal to 1 vertical (2:1). Slopes 3:1 and over require erosion control matting to aid in the
establishment of vegetation. To minimize the impact to existing vegetated area, we are requesting to
grade proposed slopes to a (2:1) slope using the required erosion control matting to establish the
vegetation or provide another stable surface. The stability of these slopes is documented in the
geotechnical report prepared for the site.” We have no objection to the requested waiver.



wl/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 8 of 20

33.-37. Previous Comments 33-37 satisfied.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

In accordance with Sections 390-51.A. and B., “All soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall
meet the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall comply
with Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control”, and, “Preliminary plan approval shall be
conditioned on all required approvals and permits from the Monroe County Conservation District
and/or PA DEP.” The proposed site disturbance is greater than one (1) acre, therefore an NPDES
Permit is required. A copy of the NPDES Permit and letter of determination of erosion and sediment
control adequacy shall be provided to the Township, as well as any correspondence between the

Applicant and Monroe County Conservation District and PADEP. (Previous Comment 38) The
response letter acknowledges this requirement.

Per Section 390-52.A.(2), “All suppliers of non-municipally owned, centralized water and/or sewer
services shall be organized in such a fashion as may be required by the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission and the Developer shall provide for operation, maintenance, and continuity of services in
a manner which is acceptable to the Township.” The O&M requirements and ownership/maintenance
plan for the water and sewage facilities must be provided to the Te ownship, including any certificate of

public convenience from the PUC. (Previous Comment 39) The response letter acknowledges this
requirement.

Previous Comment 40 satisfied.

Per Section 390-52.E.(1), “Project supply. If an approved public water supply is not accessible and
water is to be furnished on a project basis, the applicant shall, upon submission of the subdivision or
land development plan, submit written evidence that he has complied with all Township and state
regulations, and that the proposed system to be installed meets the requirements of the PA PUC, PA
DEP, and any other applicable regulations.” The required documentation must be provided for the on-
lot water supply. (Previous Comment 41) The response letter states, “The applicant has obtained a
permit to drill the site well from Pocono Township and is coordinating the drilling and testing with
DEP. Compliance with Township requirements is outlined in this letter. An application for the
public water supply permit from DEP will confirm compliance with DEP standards. The water
supply is anticipated to only serve this site. No PUC approvals will be required.” This comment will
remain until the water supply permit has been received.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(a), “Wells shall be sited, drilled and tested under the direct supervisor of a
registered professional engineer and/or a professional hydrogeologist.” Drilling logs, testing, and
installation oversight of the well drilling and testing must be provided. (Previous Comment 42) The
response letter states, “The Applicant has hired Cook Geologic to oversee the well drilling and
testing.” The required information shall be provided to the T ownship from Cook Geologic.

Previous Comment 43 satisfied.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(c), “The capacity of the well(s), as certified by a professional engineer, shall
be sufficient to produce at least 110 gallons per capita per day and/or 400 gallons per day for each
residential dwelling unit to be served. Adequate capacity of any well(s) to service industrial or
commercial establishments shall be documented by the applicant to the satisfaction of the Township



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

w/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 9 of 20

and the Township Engineer.” The design engineer is required to provide documentation that the wells
can provide adequate capacity for the proposed commercial development. (Previous Comment 44)

The response letter states, “The applicant will work with the T ownship Engineer to comply with this
requirement.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(d), “Wells shall be pump tested utilizing a controlled step-draw down test to
establish the specific capacity of each well and to establish a long-term pumping rate. The well shall
be pumped at the above determined long-term pumping rate for a sufficient period of time for
stabilization to occur and the recovery noted. In no case shall a pumping rate greater than the recharge
rate be allowed.” The required pump testing results must be provided. (Previous Comment 45) The
response letter states, “The well pump tests will be provided when completed.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(f), “Documentation of the effect of the projected area-wide drawdown of the
water table may be required by the Township if the anticipated pumping of groundwater warrants such
documentation.” It is unclear what other existing wells may exist on the neighboring properties that
could be affected by the proposed wells. The design engineer shall identify other wells and the effect
of the new well(s) within the potential drawdown area. (Previous Comment 46) The response letter
states, “Pump testing of the well will be coordinated with the T. ownship Engineer. It is anticipated

that the owners of the two properties with the closest wells will cooperate to allow monitoring during
the well pump test.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(d), “The design and installation of any central (public or community) water
supply system shall be subject to the approval of the Township, the PA DEP and other regulatory
bodies having jurisdiction. Any such system shall be further subject to satisfactory provisions for the
maintenance thereof. Standards and materials for the construction of any central water supply system
shall meet or exceed those requirements described in the "Public Water Supply Manual of the
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection" and shall be subject to the approval of the
Township.” The design engineer shall provide an operational and maintenance plan prepared by a
PA Licensed Water Supply Operator. (Previous Comment 47) The response letter states, “The

operation and maintenance plan for the water system will be provided when the design has been
confirmed.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(e), “In all subdivisions and land developments served by a central water
system, the following water pressure and gallonage requirements shall apply: [2.] Commercial or
industrial use a minimum working pressure of 30 pounds per square inch shall be provided at each
commercial or industrial building connected to the water supply main. Where a building wishes to
connect to a central water system, a study shall be made to determine if there is adequate water supply
in the system to supply the building and use.” The required study of the distribution system must be
submitted for review. (Previous Comment 48) The response letter states, “A pump system will be
provided to meet the minimum pressure required for the water distribution system. The design of
this system will be submitted to the Township for review.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(f)[1], “Fire hydrants suitable for the coupling of equipment serving the
Township shall be installed as specified by the Insurance Services Office of Pennsylvania and shall
comply with applicable fire company standards. Location of hydrants shall be approved by the
Township.” Proposed fire hydrants must be shown on the plans and approved by the Fire Company.
(Previous Comment 49) The response letter states, “The site will be served by an on-lot water system.
Buildings will be sprinklered and the required volume and pressure for the water distribution system



%% Pocono Township Planning Commission

. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2

February 3, 2025

Page 10 of 20

to provide water to the sprinkler systems will be provided. The availability of water volumes required
Jor fire hydrants will not be provided by on-lot water supply system. A dry fire hydrant connected to
Brookdale Lake exists at the entrance to the project with an existing coupling connection.” The fire
company acknowledged this in their meeting summary.

50. Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(f)[6], Commercial or industrial use.

[a] For purposes of fire protection in commercial and industrial uses, the system shall be capable of
providing fire-flow and flow duration based on the type of use, hazard, and construction as
specified in the Pennsylvania Uniform Construction Code as amended from time to time; however,
the fire flow shall not be less than 1,500 gallons per minute.

[b] A reduction in the required fire flow by 50% may be permitted when all buildings within a
development are provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with the
International Fire Code as adopted by the Pennsylvania Uniform Construction Code as amended.

Documentation that the required fire flows can be met must be provided to the Township. (Previous
Comment 50) The response letter states, “The site water system will provide adequate fire flow for
the sprinkler systems for the buildings. Bulk water supply for fire protection will be provided by a

dry hydrant at the project entrance from Brookdale Lake.” The fire company acknowledged this in
their meeting summary.

51, Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(g)[3], “If wells are to be utilized as a part of the proposed water supply
system, the number of wells, the pumping capacity of each well, the number of hours per day that each
well pump operates, the depth of each well, depth of water table in each well, diameter of well casing,
draw-down rated capacity of each well, the maximum sustained yield from the well test together with
a copy of the well test data all shall be supplied with the proposed study.” The required well test

information shall be submitted to demonstrate compliance. (Previous Comment 51) The response
letter acknowledges this requirement.

52. Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(g)[7], “For any new commercial or industrial use, a minimum pressure of 30
pounds per square inch shall be provided which shall meet all potable water supply requirements for
the intended use in addition to providing fire-flow water requirements for a minimum duration of two
hours of not less than 500 gallons per minute at residual pressures of 30 pounds per square inch. Fire
hydrants for either residential, commercial, or industrial development shall be spaced every 600 feet
within the proposed development.” Documentation that the required fire flows can be met must be
provided to the Township. (Previous Comment 52) A waiver is requested as related to water system
design capacity for fire flow water and fire hydrants beyond the requirements for sprinkler systems
Jor the Spa building and the employee housing building as required by the Building Code. The
Justification states, “Fire protection will be provided to the building by sprinklers and a dry fire
hydrant will be provided on site, supplied by Brookdale Lake.” We recommend this be referred to
the Building Code official for input.

53. Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(g)[8], “The water supply study shall demonstrate that all potable water
required for the subject subdivisions and/or land developments shall meet the water quality standards
as established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, originally listed as the National
Interim Primary Drinking Water Regulations, EPA Document No. 570/9-76-003, and as further
amended in the Federal Register, Wednesday, December 24, 1975, through Wednesday, August 27,



54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

39,

Pocono Township Planning Commission

ﬁ Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025
Page 11 of 20

1980, and including the National Secondary Drinking Water Regulations as listed in the Federal
Register, Thursday, July 19, 1979. In addition, any known carcinogens which have been identified as
of the date of this chapter, and which might be identified after the date of this chapter, shall be identified
in any and all testing procedures of the proposed public water supply and water supplies exceeding the
established carcinogenic levels shall not be utilized for domestic purposes.” New source water quality

testing shall be provided for all wells. (Previous Comment 53) The response letter acknowledges
the requirement.

Per Sections 390-52.E.(4.)(i)[1] and [4], “Distribution mains of the overall system shall be connected

‘into loops so that the supply may be brought to the consumer from more than one direction.” and
“Water mains shall be configured to form a loop system to enhance the continual supply of fresh
water.” The required loop must be added to the water system. (Previous Comment 54) A waiver has
been requested to this requirement. The justification states, “Based on the relatively short distance
between the source and the buildings and the limited service area of the proposed water system, a
single water main will adequately serve project. The entire water distribution system is smaller than
a typical block in a looped water system. Calculations confirm in the adequacy of the distribution
system design for flow and pressure will be provided.” We have no objection to this request.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4.)(1)[20][a], “Water mains shall be a minimum diameter of eight inches except
at the end of a permanent cul-de-sac, unless another size is required for fire flow or other criteria. A
six-inch main may be used when it serves not more than 20 dwelling units and only one fire hydrant.”
The plans depict two separate 8" water lines for fire and domestic use. We recommend the size of the
domestic line be reconsidered. Providing potable water at a flow rate which is able to Sflush the 8" line
is likely not possible from a system this small. Provided there is adequate distribution capacity of a
smaller diameter water mains, as justified by appropriate analysis, a waiver from this provision would
be required. (Previous Comment 54) The response letter states, “The confirmation of the water
main size will be provided with the detailed design of the water distribution system upon
confirmation of the well capacity and building fire protection design.”

Previous Comment 56 satisfied.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(k), “If the proposed subdivision or land development will utilize groundwater
as the source of potable water, a hydrogeology study shall accompany the preliminary plan.” The
required study shall be provided. (Previous Comment 57) The response letter states, “A
hydrogeologic study for the development of the site water supply will be provided.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(5), “Flow rates. Distribution systems serving commercial or industrial
developments shall provide for a minimum flow rate of at least 2.5 times the projected average daily
flow rate or a minimum flow rate in accordance with the standards of the National Fire Underwriters
Association, whichever is greater.” 4 model of the distribution system shall be provided to demonstrate
that the required flows can be provided. (Previous Comment 58) The response letter states, “A model
of the water distribution system will be provided upon confirmation of the well capacity.”

Per Section 390-52.E.(6), “Water resources impact study. A water resources impact study shall be
required for all residential developments involving 12 or more lots and any nonresidential development
proposing to withdraw 4,000 or more gallons of water per day over a thirty-day period.” The required
hydrogeologic study and calculations shall be provided in a format to meet this requirement since the
anticipated water usage is over 4,000 gpd. (Previous Comment 59) The response letter states, “A



Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

% i\ﬁ'ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

60.

61.

62.-64.

65.

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025
Page 12 of 20

water resource impact study will be provided as required by DEP and as recommended by the project

Professional Geologist. A waiver request of the ordinance requirements that exceed DEP
requirements.”

A waiver has been requested from Section 390-52.E(6)(d)[9] with respect to Pumping Tests. The
waiver justification states, “Brookdale Enterprises, LLC proposes to conduct a 12-hour constant-
rate pumping test rather than a 48-hour pumping test. Background water levels will be monitored
in the pumping well and any monitoring wells JSor at least 72-hour prior to pumping and recovery
will be monitored until 95% recovery of drawdown is observed. The pumping rate for the test will be
determined based on the estimated well yield estimated during drilling or, if deemed necessary by
Brookdale Enterprises, LLC, from results of a step-drawdown test. The well will be pumped at the

rate at which the Professional Geologist recommends; not at 150% of the peak daily water demand.”
We have no objection to the requested waiver.

Previous Comment 60 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-52.G.(1)(b)[8], “Sewers shall be located a minimum of 10 feet
horizontally from any obstruction such as a building. Sewers must be a minimum of 10 feet from a
water main or 18 inches (measured from top of sewer to bottom of water main) under the same. When
a sanitary sewer line crosses above or under any other pipeline with separation of less than 18 inches,
the sanitary line will be provided with concrete encasement that extends 10 feet on either side of the
pipe being crossed.” Concrete encasement locations must be shown on the plans and profiles where
the minimum separation distances are not achieved. (Previous Comment 61) A waiver has been
requested with respect to crossings of storm pipes with less than 12 inches of separation and for the
sewer force main which cannot be encased. The justification states, “Concrete encasement will be
provided as required where sewer mains cross water mains per DEP requirements. A waiver of the
requirement to concrete encase sewer pipes that cross storm sewer pipes with separation of less than
18 inches cannot be maintained but more than 12 inches is maintained is requested and for the

sewer forcemain where the pipe is installed by boring.” We have no objection to the requested
waiver.

Previous Comments 62-64 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-55.B.(1), “Preservation of existing vegetation. Each mature tree, tree
mass, or woodland on the site shall be designated "TO REMAIN" or "TO BE REMOVED" and shall
be shown on the plan” in accordance with the criteria in this section. Additionally, Section 390-
55.B.(1)(a) states “All subdivisions and land developments shall be laid out in such a manner as to
minimize the removal of healthy trees and shrubs on the site. Mature trees (six inches or greater dbh)
shall be preserved insofar as possible; and special consideration shall be given to major specimen trees
(12 inches or greater dbh). The plan shall show the location of major specimen trees in areas of the site
proposed for development, and the edge of existing woodlands.” The plan shall be revised to identify
any specimen trees and to clearly show the disposition of existing vegetation on the site. This
information should be provided on an existing features/demolition plan. (Previous Comment 65) A
waiver has been requested with respect to the requirements to delineate individual specimen trees
over 12 inches for preservation. The justification states, “The site is mostly forested. Tree masses
will be maintained on undisturbed areas of the site as indicated on C.L01, especially in steep slope
areas. Thousands of trees will be preserved. The limit of disturbance (LED) will be marked in the
field to protect trees beyond the limit of the LED, although some trees in close proximity to the LED



66.

67.-68.

69.

70.

71.

72

/7

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 13 of 20

may be removed as necessary. The site design has carefully considered ways to limit impacts to
wooded areas and conservation areas. A waiver is requested of the requirements to delineate
individual specimen trees over 12 inches for preservation based on the site constraints unique to this
project where complete tree clearing areas are required to accomplish the site grading in the
development areas of the site and significant areas of tree preservation are proposed in
environmentally sensitive areas.” We have no objection to the requested waiver.

Pursuant to Section 390-55.B.(2), “Protection of existing vegetation. Existing vegetation designated
"TO REMAIN" in accord with Subsection B(1)(c), above, shall be identified in the field prior to any
clearing and shall be physically protected throughout the construction process. A temporary physical
barrier, such as a snow fence, shall be erected a minimum of one foot outside the dripline on all sides
of individual trees, tree masses, or woodlands prior to major clearing or construction. The barrier shall
be placed to prevent disturbance to, or compaction of, soil inside the barrier and shall remain until
construction is complete. The barrier shall be shown on the landscape plan.” Tree protection fencing
shall be shown along the “proposed” treeline. A detail of the fencing shall also be added to the plans.
(Previous Comment 66) The response letter states “A one inch durable nylon webbing will be
installed on the limit of disturbance (LED) for the project to provide a barrier to alert construction
equipment of the limit. The viability of keeping trees near the LED will be determined at the end of
the project. It is anticipated that the dripline of remaining trees will be near the LED.” The webbing

location shall be shown on the landscape plan per the ordinance requirement and a detail of the
webbing added to the plans.

Previous Comments 67-68 satisfied.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(e), “Planting islands shall be a minimum of nine feet by 18 feet in dimension,
underlain by soil (not base course material); mounded at no more than a 3:1 slope, nor less than a 5:1
slope; and shall be protected by curbing or bollards. Each planting island shall contain a minimum of
one shade tree plus shrubs and/or ground cover sufficient to cover the entire area.” The plan shall
dimension the widths of the proposed parking islands. Additionally, the specified “rock mulch/rock
ground cover” is not listed in Appendix A as an acceptable ground cover. The applicant should discuss
this with the Township. (Previous Comment 69) A waiver has been requested to permit the use of

the rock mulch. The justification states, “Rock mulch is provided as an attractive and maintainable
accent to vegetated ground cover.”

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(f), “All planting strips shall be a minimum of eight feet wide. Strips shall run
the length of the parking row, underlain by soil (not base course material), shall be designed to
encourage the infiltration of stormwater insofar as possible, and shall be protected by curbs, wheel
stops, or bollards. Planting strips shall contain plantings of street-type shade trees at maximum intervals
of tree per 30 feet, plus shrubs and/or ground cover, as approved by the Township, to cover the entire
area.” The width of the planting strip between the parking aisles at the front of the building shall be
dimensioned. (Previous Comment 70) The revised plans now confirm the width of the planting
strip; however, some of the tree spacings in the strip in front of the building exceed the permitted 30
Seet. The trees shall be adjusted to meet the maximum 30-foot spacing requirement.

Previous Comment 71 satisfied.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(h), for parking lots with 10 or more stalls, “Plants shall comply with the
requirements of §390-55G of this chapter. The use of plants selected from the List of Acceptable Plants



73.

74.

75.

76.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 14 of 20

in §390-55H is required.” A proposed shrub, Bog Rosemary, is not on the list of acceptable plants. A
waiver has been requested to utilize the Bog Rosemary due to its resistance to deer browsing.
(Previous Comment 72) A waiver has been requested to permit the use of Bog Rosemary. The
Justification states, “This species provides evergreen foliage and [flowers like a rhododendron with

resistance to deer browsing.” We question the use of this plant material on this project as it appears
to prefer a wet and boggy habitat.

Per Section 390-55.D.(1)(a), “Street trees shall be required along all existing streets abutting or within
the proposed subdivision or land development.” Street trees are required along Back Mountain Road.
(Previous Comment 73) Per Section 390-55.D.(2), “Waiver Jor existing vegetation. The street tree
requirement may be waived by the Township where existing vegetation is considered sufficient to
provide effective screening and to maintain scenic views of open space, natural Sfeatures, or other
valued features.” Since the response letter states, “Street trees will be provided in open areas per
the Ordinance where Back Mountain Road does not border existing wooded areas.”, a waiver
request to maintain existing vegetation should be submitted by the applicant.

Previous Comment 74 satisfied.

Per Section 390-55.E.(3), “Basin grades. Minimum grades inside stormwater basins shall be 1% unless
infiltration is an integral part of the design; and maximum side slopes of the basin shall be 33% (3:1
slope).” The proposed basins show interior side slope grades of 3:1 (33 %), exterior side slopes of 2:1
(50%), and flat bottoms. A waiver request has been submitted to permit steeper side slopes with
erosion control matting and a flat bottom to provide for infiltration and evapotranspiration. In part,
the justification states that erosion control matting will be provided and the stability of the slopes will
be documented in a geotechnical report. The submitted geotechnical report indicates that slopes
greater than 3H:1V will require additional engineering evaluation. The “additional engineering
evaluation” supporting the waiver request must be provided. (Previous Comment 75) A waiver has
been requested to permit the basin bottoms to be flat and Jor the side slopes to exceed 3:1 slopes.
The justification states, “The stormwater facilities propose both infiltration and evapotranspiration
(ET) to manage the volume and water quality increase based upon onsite soils testing. The proposed
Jacilities are graded with a flat bottom slope to maximize storage, infiltration and ET volumes to
meet the permit requirements. Therefore, we are requesting a waiver to allow flat bottom basins at
0% slope. The NPDES standards provide for grading to be stabilized with vegetation up to slopes to
2 horizontal to 1 vertical (2:1). Slopes 3:1 and over require erosion control matting to aid in the
establishment of vegetation. To minimize the impact to existing vegetated area we are requesting to
grade proposed slopes to a (2:1) slope using the required erosion control matting to establish the
vegetation or provide another stable surface. The stability of these slopes are documented in the
geotechnical report prepared for the site.” We have no objection to the requested waiver.

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(c) and Table 390-55-1, “The width and quantity and type of
plants required shall be determined by the intensity of the proposed land use and the adjacent land use,
vacant land, or zoning district, according to Table 390-55-1.” Buffer calculations must be provided
on the Landscaping Plan. The calculations/tabulation shall include the property line lengths, the
intensity of the buffer, and the required and provided number of plants for each buffer area. (Previous
Comment 76) The buffer tabulation that has been added to the plans is only for 300 feet along the
Lands N/F Donna L. Ran. The placement of the buffer planting is mostly along Detention Basin 1

with only a few trees along the proposed Maintenance Building. We recommend the plantings be
adjusted to provide more screening of the building.



/\\ A Pocono Township Planning Commission
AND
Iwn

71.

78.

79,

80.

81.-83.

84.

85.

86.

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 15 of 20

Additionally, calculations and buffer plantings shall be provided for ALL property lines and the
buffer areas depicted on the plans.

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(f)[4], “A variety of tree species is required”. The plan shall
demonstrate compliance with the required maximum percentage of any one species. (Previous
Comment 77) The revised plans show a variety of trees for the buffers. Although this Ordinance
section is specifically related to buffer plantings, it is recommended that the maximum percentage
of species be applied across all tree requirements. The variety improves resilience and reduces tree
loss should a particular species be vulnerable to invasive pests, winds, or drought. Additionally, the
diversity is important in the support of a variety of wildlife.

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(4)(c), “The type of site element screen required shall be
determined by the site element and the adjacent existing land use or zoned use in the case of vacant
land, according to Table 390-55-2.” Site element screens and calculations must be provided on the
Landscaping Plan for the detention basins and the sewage pump station. (Previous Comment 78)
The required site element screen has been added Jor the sewage pump station. A Screen Type No.
6 must also be added to the Dry Extended Detention Basin 1 along the side near the Lands N/F

Donna L. Ran as it is within 100 feet of the property line. This screen may be combined with the
required buffer plantings.

Previous Comment 79 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1., “Landscape plans shall be prepared by a landscape architect
licensed and registered to practice by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or other person deemed
qualified by the Township.” The landscape plans shall be signed and sealed by the landscape architect
who prepared them. (Previous Comment 80) The response letter states, “The landscape plan has
been designed by 02, a qualified landscape architect Jrom Calgary, Canada with input from
Primrose Landscape Company and RKR Hess. This well qualified team has developed a specific
design for a landscape plan that meets the needs of this site and project scope. We request the design
team be accepted by the Township.” No supporting information has been provided to demonstrate
their knowledge of the Pennsylvania climate, environment, and habitat.

Previous Comments 81-83 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(k), “A detailed cost estimate shall be submitted, showing the
value of all proposed landscaping, including all labor and materials.” The required cost estimate for

the project shall include the proposed landscaping. (Previous Comment 84) The response letter
acknowledges this requirement.

Previous Comment 85 satisfied.

Per Section 390-57.E., “Protection. Where the study shows the existence of wetland areas, the
delineated boundary shall be properly fenced to prevent encroachment. Snow fence or other acceptable
material shall be used (the use of silt fence is not acceptable). The fence shall be properly installed, at
a minimum distance of 20 feet outside the delineated boundary, prior to any construction or issuance
of building permits. No land shall be disturbed within any required buffer area except in accord with
Township requirements. The fence must be properly maintained until all occupancy permits have been



=\
— /4

87.

88.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 16 of 20

issued and/or for the extent of all construction.” The required snow fence shall be provided on the
Erosion & Sedimentation Control Plans and its installation included in the construction sequence.
(Previous Comment 86) The response letter states, “A one inch durable nylon webbing is proposed
to be located along the wetlands as shown on the ESC Plans and has been included in the
construction sequence.” We are unable to locate the proposed webbing on the plans or in the
sequence as indicated. Additionally, we do not think the webbing is an acceptable fencing material
Jor this application. Orange construction Jence, or its equivalent, shall be provided at a distance of
at least 20 feet away from the delineated boundary to protect the wetland areas.

In accordance with the Section 390-58 Common Open Space, Recreation Areas, and In-Lieu Fees:

A. Section 390-58.3B.(1), “This §390-58 shall apply to any subdivision for which a preliminary
plan or a combined preliminary/final plan and any land development for which a plan is
submitted after the effective date of this §390-58.”

B. Section 390-58.C.(1), “The proposal for common open space, installation of recreation
facilities and/or fees shall be offered for review by the Planning Commission and the Pocono
Township Park and Recreation Committee.”

C. Section 390-59.F., “Fees. If the Board of Commissioners and the applicant agree that a
proposed subdivision or land development will pay fees-in-lieu of dedicating open space, this

fee shall be as established by the Township Fee Schedule, which may be updated by resolution
of the Board of Commissioners.”

D. Section 390-58.K., “Timing of nonresidential fees. Fees required by this §390-58 for any
nonresidential subdivision or land development shall be paid prior to the recording of the final
plan of a subdivision or land development, as applicable.”

The plans do not propose any open space to be dedicated to the T ownship, therefore, the Applicant
shall pay the applicable in-lieu fees, as required by Section 390-58. Should it be determined that open
space is required and a fee in-lieu-of will be provided, that fee will be $27.286.00 (19.49 disturbed
acres * §1,400.00). (Previous Comment 87) A waiver has been requested to Sections 390-58.B(1),
390-58.C(1), 390-59.F, and 390-59.K with respect to the open space and fee in-lieu requirements.
The justification states, “The proposed project will provide a positive tax benefit to the Township,
County and State. The project provides recreation and service to residents and guests of the
community. The project does not provide new housing units that will increase the number of
residents in the Township and impact the use and demand of existing open space facilities. Based
on the specific characteristics of this project, a waiver request of the requirement to provide open

space or a fee in lieu of open space is requested.” The Board of Commissioners must make this
determination.

In accordance with Section 390-59.B., “Parking spaces and aisles. Parking space and aisle dimensions
shall be no less than those listed in the following table”. Parking spaces are required to be a minimum
of 10°x18’ per this section. It is noted that the plan reflects 9'x18’ spaces as defined in the Zoning
Ordinance. A waiver has been requested to allow the space dimensions per the Zoning Ordinance.
(Previous Comment 88) We have no objection to the requested waiver.



89.

)

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 17 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-60., a “traffic impact study shall be submitted to the Township, as part
of a preliminary plan and final plan for any subdivision or land development application expected to
generate more than 250 new trips per day; for residential subdivisions or land developments containing
15 or more dwelling units or residential lots in the aggregate.” The Traffic Analysis shows increases
to peak hour traffic volumes on weekday AM, PM, and Saturdays with no additional improvements
proposed within the study area. We recommend this Analysis be provided to PennDOT for evaluation
with respect to the timing of the traffic signals recently installed at 611/Brookdale Road. (Previous
Comment 89) The Analysis was submitted to PennDOT and they have responded that they concur

with the analysis and conclusion that no additional improvements are required to the study area.
No additional action is required.

SANITARY SEWER AND PUMP STATION COMMENTS

90.-95. Previous Comments 90-95 satisfied.

96.

The backwash of the pool system is reported to be 5,600 gpd. The peak rate of the backwash must be
determined and demonstrated that it does not overwhelm the connected pump station. Further, pool
backwash is known to have a much stronger waste than traditional sewage. The organic loading
capacity of the WWTP, both in total daily load and concentration, must be analyzed to demonstrate it
can handle the proposed combined waste. (Previous Comment 96) The response letter indicates that
additional information and verification will be provided in a future submission. We would also
accept this information as a shop drawing prior to construction.

97.-100. Previous Comments 97-100 satisfied.

101.

102.

103.

104.

The construction details of the proposed grease trap must be provided. (Previous Comment 101) The
response letter states, “The proposed grease trap detail will be provided in a future submission. We
are coordinating with the Owner’s MEP who will be providing the design for the grease trap.”

The force main crosses under Scot Run, a regulated water course. A Chapter 105 stream encroachment
permit is required for this crossing. (Previous Comment 102) The response letter states, “A Chapter
105 stream encroachment permit application has been submitted for this crossing and the
application has been accepted as complete by DEP.”

Per the Domestic Wastewater Facilities Manual, Section 27.2, the pipe material under the stream must
be cast or ductile iron, or be concrete encased. The applicant must consult with the PADEP to determine
if the proposed variation from the standard is acceptable for the use of HDPE directional boring being
proposed. (Previous Comment 103) The response letter states, “The proposed HDPE DR11 IPS
with fused joints proposed to be installed via horizontal directional drilling (HDD) methods is
acceptable to PADEP. The Chapter 105 stream encroachment permit application has been submitted

to PADEP for review. PADEP’s response and approval will be provided to the Township in future
submission.”

Previous Comment 104 satisfied.



105.

106.-

108.

109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

% Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 18 of 20

At least one cleanout location should be provided in the midpoint of the force main. (Previous
Comment 105) The cleanout has been added. However, the flow direction on the sewer cleanout
detail shall be reversed. Note that this detail is on both plan sheets C.DU.01 and C.DU.02.

107. Previous Comments 106-107 satisfied.

A Township Road occupancy permit must be obtained for the road crossings in Brookdale and Dyson
Roads. (Previous Comment 108) The response letter acknowledges this requirement.

Previous Comment 109 satisfied.

Lot 2 (this project) and Lot 3 are separate legal parcels. An easement on Lot 3, to benefit Lot 2, must
be provided to allow for the installation and future maintenance of the force mains. (Previous
Comment 110) Proposed sewer easements have been added to Sheet C.S.01. Executed easement
agreements shall be provided to the Township prior to final plan approvals.

An easement through the Brookdale Resort property for the connection and future maintenance of the
force main to the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility must be provided. (Previous Comment 111 )
A proposed easement has been added to Sheet C.S.01. Executed easement agreements shall be
provided to the Township prior to final plan approvals.

Notation shall be added to the Site Plan stating the ownership and maintenance responsibilities of the
force main and sewage pump station and the requirement for an operational plan to be prepared which
includes the operation and maintenance responsibilities, schedules, and emergency contacts. This shall
be provided to the Township prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. (Previous Comment 112)

The notation has been added. The O&M Plan shall be provided to the T ownship prior to issuance
of a Certificate of Occupancy.

Copies of agreements allowing for the connection to and treatment of sewage through the existing
Brookdale Resort Wastewater Treatment Facility for this project must be provided to the Township.
(Previous Comment 113) The response letter acknowledges the requirement.

114.-122. Previous Comments 114-122 satisfied.

WATER COMMENTS

123.

124.

The plans identify a water treatment, storage, and pump system within the maintenance building.
Information related to this treatment must be provided to the Township for review. (Previous
Comment 123) The response letter states, “The details of the water supply system and fire protection
system are under design and will be provided to the Township in future submission.”

The location of the water storage tank to provide fire protection services must be shown. (Previous
Comment 124) The response letter states, “The details of the water supply system and fire protection
system are under design and will be provided to the Township in future submission.”



125.

126.

127.

128.

129,

130.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
February 3, 2025

Page 19 of 20

The fire flow demand must be established. (Previous Comment 125) The response letter states, “The

details of the fire protection system are under design. Fire flow demand requirements will be
provided to the Township in future submission.”

Previous Comment 126 satisfied.

The project will require a water supply permit under PA Code, Title 25, Chapter 109. (Previous
Comment 127) The response letter states, “A public water supply permit application will be
submitted upon completion of hydrogeological investigation and design.”

Previous Comment 128 satisfied.

Potable water mains crossing under any storm or sanitary lines shall have concrete encasement. The
encasement shall be added to the plans and profiles. (Previous Comment 129) The required
encasement shall be added to the water mains under the sewer laterals from both the Employee
Housing Building and the Maintenance Building as well as the water mains crossing under storm

runs B21 to B22, 2-4 to 2-4, 2-4B to 2-4A, 2-6-3 to 2-6-2, and 2-6B-1 to 2-6B in accordance with
PADEP regulations.

Previous Comment 130 satisfied.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

131.-135. Previous Comments 131-135 satisfied.

136.

The proposed grading shown on the Site Plans does not match that shown on the PCSM plans. All
proposed grading shall be consistent throughout the plan set. (Previous Comment 13 6) Since the Site

Plan only shows proposed contours at 5-foot intervals, a note shall be added to the plans referring
to the PCSM plans for detailed grading.

137.-146. Previous Comments 137-146 satisfied.

147.

148.

149.

150.

151.

The lot closure for Utility Easement Lot 3 ends with two (2) curves to the right. Curves SW25 and
SW26 on Sheet C.S.01 do not appear to scale to the lengths shown in the tables. (New Comment)

Curve ST12 is missing from the Drainage Easement Plan on Sheet C.S.01. (New Comment)
Fire Lane Pavement Marking is indicated and shown in a detail on Sheet C.FL.01. This marking should
be added to the Pavement Marking Plan on Sheet C.S.03. Additionally, the detail should identify

where the “Fire Lane — No Parking” wording is to be located in a plan view. (New Comment)

The separation distance between the waterlines and the sanitary sewer shall be labeled on the
“Employee Housing Lateral to MH2” profile on Sheet C.UT.04. (New Comment)

The dimension of the fire truck used for the turning movement plan Sheet C.FL.01 shall be depicted
on the plan. (New Comment)



%% Pocono Township Planning Commission

' Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2

February 3, 2025

Page 20 of 20

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with the
intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the number and nature of the
comments in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to approval
of the Preliminary/Final Land Development and Subdivision Plan.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

If you should have any questions regarding the above, please call me.
Sincerely,
N \_AL,

resslar, P.E., P.L.S. \
Township Engineer

JST/arm

cex Jerrod Belvin — Pocono Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Brookdale Enterprises, LLC — Applicant
Nate Oiler, P.E. - RKR Hess, a division of UTRS, Inc.
Kristina Heaney — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0680\Correspondence\Review Letters\Brookdale Spa Prelim.Final LD Plan Review No. 2.docx



Date: 12/18/2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development:  Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-38.C(3)

Section 390-38.C(3) Any improvements which will remain private. In the case where roads,
drainage facilities, a central sewage treatment system or central water supply, or any other
improvements are to remain private, the developer shall provide for the establishment of an
escrow fund in accord with § 390-35A to guarantee the operation and maintenance of the
improvements. Said fund shall be established on a permanent basis with administrative
provisions approved by the Board of Commissioners. The amount of said fund shall be 15% of
the construction cost of the system as verified by the Township Engineer. The maintenance and
operation of the improvements and the administration of any required maintenance fund account,
shall be clearly established as the joint responsibility of the owner(s) of each structure or
dwelling unit served by such system. Such responsibility and the mechanism to accomplish same
shall be established by deed covenants and restrictions which shall be subject to the approval of
the Board of Commissioners.

Justification for Relief:

An operation and maintenance agreement will be provided for stormwater management facilities
the sewer system and water supply system. The requirement for operation and maintenance of
these systems is the owner of the property. The agreement will confirm the responsibility of the
owner to maintain the required improvements and penalties detailing the consequences if the
property owner fails to properly operate and maintain these required facilities.

This requirement for a guaranteed maintenance fund is appropriaté where common facilities are
provided by a developer and lots or portions of the project are conveyed to other owners who
will be responsible for the long term maintenance of the facilities when the developer is gone. It
this case, entity responsible for the operation and maintenance of the required improvements is
the entity who owns the property. Because of this, we request the operation and maintenance
requirements be clearly documented in agreements with the property owner but the requirement
for financial security for operation and maintenance of required site improvements be waived.

b

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Site improvements will be maintained as required by agreements
between the owner and the Township.

Review Comment 17



Date:  12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-48.T(13)(b)

Section 390-48.T(13)(b) Access drive entrances into all nonresidential and nonagricultural use
properties shall be no less than 24 feet in width. shall not exceed 36 feet in width at the road line.
unless provided with a median divider. and shall be clearly defined by curbing. The curbs of

these driveway entrances shall be rounded with a minimum radius of 20 feet from where they
intersect a road.

Justification for Relief:

The driveway width is proposed to be 41 feet wide at the proposed limit of the 30-foot right of
way, in excess of the 36 feet maximum width specified in the ordinance. This width is required
to accommodate truck traffic accessing the site. Curbing will be provided, however a center
median divider is not proposed. Pavement markings will be provided to delineate the travelway.
A waiver is requested to allow a driveway width necessary to meet the appropriate standards for

truck access to the site and mark the travelway with pavement markings without a median
divider.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Safe access to the site is consistent with the intent of this
ordinance

Review Comment 26



Date: 12/18/2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-48.T(12)(a)

Section 390-48.T.(12)(a) The access drive within the legal right-of-way of the public road, or for
a distance of at least 20 feet from the edge of the cartway, whichever is greater, shall not have a
grade in excess of 4%. The grade of any access drive shall not exceed 10%.

Justification for Relief:

The proposed grade of the driveway of 12% is consistent with the grades allowable for a local
road. The 12% grade is necessary to minimize grading necessary to access the developable
portion of the site from the location on Back Mountain Road suitable for driveway access based
on the required design requirements.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: The proposed 12% grade is consistent with local road design
standards and will minimize grading and environmental impacts.

Review Comment 25



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-48.W(1)

Section 390-48.W(1) The maximum slope of any earth embankment or excavation shall not
exceed one foot vertical to three feet horizontal unless stabilized by a retaining wall or cribbing,
except as approved by the Board of Commissioners for special conditions.

Justification for Relief:

The NPDES standards provide for grading to be stabilized with vegetation up to slopes to 2
horizontal to 1 vertical (2:1). Slopes 3:1 and over require erosion control matting to aid in the
establishment of vegetation. To minimize the impact to existing vegetated area, we are
requesting to grade proposed slopes to a (2:1) slope using the required erosion control matting to
establish the vegetation or provide another stable surface. The stability of these slopes is
documented in the geotechnical report prepared for the site.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: By providing stable but steeper proposed grade slopes, site
impacts are minimized consistent with the goals of this ordinance

Review Comment 28



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-50.D(5)

Section 390-50.D(5) The maximum slope of the earthen detention basin embankments shall be
four horizontal to one vertical.

Justification for Relief:

The NPDES standards provide for grading to be stabilized with vegetation up to slopes to 2
horizontal to 1 vertical (2:1). Slopes 3:1 and over require erosion control matting to aid in the
establishment of vegetation. To minimize the impact to existing vegetated area we are
requesting to grade proposed slopes to a (2:1) slope using the required erosion control matting to
establish the vegetation or provide another stable surface. The stability of these slopes are
documented in the geotechnical report prepared for the site.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes p. No
Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development /

Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: By providing stable but steeper proposed grade slopes, site
impacts are minimized consistent with the goals of this ordinance

Review Comment 32



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-50.D(8)

Basin bottom slope - In order to ensure proper drainage on the basin bottom, a minimum grade of
2% shall be maintained for areas of sheet flow. For channel flow, a minimum grade of 1% shall
be maintained

Justification for Relief:

The ordinance requires a minimum grade of 2% on the basin bottom or 1% if a flow channel is
used to ensure proper drainage. The stormwater facilities propose both infiltration and
evapotranspiration (ET) to manage the volume and water quality increase based upon onsite soils
testing. The proposed facilities are graded with a flat bottom slope to maximize storage,
infiltration and ET volumes to meet the permit requirements. Infiltration tests have been
performed at the proposed facility bottom to confirm infiltration capability. Therefore, we are
requesting a waiver to allow flat bottom basins at 0% slope.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain:




Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-52.E(4)(g)[7]

Section 390-52.E(4)(g)[7] With regard to minimum water supply requirements, each new
residential dwelling shall be provided with a minimum domestic pressure of 30 pounds per
square inch at the house connection and each such dwelling shall be provided with a minimum of
300 gallons of water per residential unit per day. For any new commercial or industrial use, a
minimum pressure of 30 pounds per square inch shall be provided which shall meet all potable
water supply requirements for the intended use in addition to providing fire-flow water
requirements for a minimum duration of two hours of not less than 500 gallons per minute at
residual pressures of 30 pounds per square inch. Fire hydrants for either residential, commercial,
or industrial development shall be spaced every 600 feet within the proposed development.

Justification for Relief:

A waiver of the requirement is requested related to water system design capacity for fire flow
water and fire hydrants beyond the requirements for sprinkler systems for the Spa building and
the employee housing building as required by the Building Code.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Fire protection will be provided to the building by sprinklers and
a dry fire hydrant will be provided on site, supplied by Brookdale
Lake.

Review Comment #52



Date: __12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-52.E(4)()[1] & [4]

Section 390-52.E(4)(i)

[1] Distribution mains of the overall system shall be connected into loops so that the supply
may be brought to the consumer from more than one direction.

[4] Water mains shall be configured to form a loop system to enhance the continual supply of
fresh water. When dead ends occur on new mains, they shall all be closed with cast-iron plugs
and caps, with a blowoff valve, with a concrete anchor, or fire hydrant. Concrete anchors

(thrust blocks) shall be provided at all vertical and horizontal bends. Water mains shall be
installed 10 feet from the center line of the cartway.

Justification for Relief:

Based on the relatively short distance between the source and the buildings and the limited
service area of the proposed water system, a single water main will adequately serve project.
The entire water distribution system is smaller than a typical block in a looped water system.
Calculations confirm in the adequacy of the distribution system design for flow and pressure will
be provided. A waiver of this requirement is requested.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: The water system will provide adequately service without a

looped configuration due to the small size of the water
distribution system.

Review Comment # 54



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-52.E(6)(d)[6]

Section 390-52.E(6)(d)[6]

At least six monitoring wells shall be employed for each pumping test. Monitoring wells shall be
evenly spaced radially around the test well so as to represent the region. Wells shall be evenly
distanced from the test well so as to experience background in addition to interaction conditions.
At least one well shall be no more than 500 feet from the test well. If such a well is not available,
a monitoring well can be drilled on the site to serve that purpose. The monitoring well should be
drilled in a location and constructed in a location, depth and yield so as to later be used as a
house well. Information regarding monitoring well casing depth, total depth and water producing
zones shall be provided in the final report.

Justification for Relief:

Brookdale Enterprises, LLC proposes to monitor wells on adjacent properties subject to the
permission granted by the owners. DEP standards will be followed to perform the pump testing
of the new well and adjacent wells will be monitored. The requirement of at least six monitoring
wells is not feasible given the sparse development in the area. Moreover, the requirement is
excessive as it goes beyond any reasonable need for the purpose of aquifer characterization and
evaluation of potential impacts to surrounding wells.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Pump testing and well monitoring will be performed in
accordance with DEP standards and coordinated with the
Township Engineer. Existing wells on adjacent properties will be
monitored subject to permission of the owner.

Review Comment 59



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-52.E(6)(d)[9]

Section 390-52.E(6)(d)[9]
Pumping tests. Forty-eight-hour pumping test(s) shall be conducted on the pumping test well(s)
at a rate not less than 150% of the combined projected peak daily water demand for the proposed
need for which the well represents. The test shall include the monitoring of background water
levels in all wells for a period not less than one week prior to start of pumping and one week
after pumping. The pumping test shall be conducted during a period when there is no measurable
precipitation for at least 48 hours prior to pumping and throughout the test. If precipitation is
encountered during this period, the data shall be evaluated using an acceptable method to
account for the effects of any recharge upon water levels in the wells, and upon all calculations
at a constant pumping test data. Significant recharge during the test may cause the results to be
considered invalid. The pumping test shall be followed by a recovery test, with monitoring of
water levels in the test well being conducted until at least 95% recovery of draw down is
observed in the test well, or until 48 hours after termination of pumping, whichever is first.

Justification for Relief:

Brookdale Enterprises, LLC proposes to conduct a 12-hour constant-rate pumping test rather
than a 48-hour pumping test. Background water levels will be monitored in the pumping well
and any monitoring wells for at least 72-hour prior to pumping and recovery will be monitored
until 95% recovery of drawdown is observed. The pumping rate for the test will be determined
based on the estimated well yield estimated during drilling or, if deemed necessary by Brookdale
Enterprises, LLC, from results of a step-drawdown test. The well will be pumped at the rate at
which the Professional Geologist recommends; not at 150% of the peak daily water demand.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Pump testing will be performed in accordance with DEP
standards and recommendations from the project Professional
Geologist consistent with the scope of the project.




Review Comment 59



Date: _ 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-52.G(1)(b)[8]

Section 390-52.G(1)(b)[8]
Sewers shall be located a minimum of 10 feet horizontally from any obstruction such as a
building. Sewers must be a minimum of 10 feet from a water main or 18 inches (measured from
top of sewer to bottom of water main) under the same. When a sanitary sewer line crosses above
or under any other pipeline with separation of less than 18 inches, the sanitary line will be
provided with concrete encasement that extends 10 feet on either side of the pipe being crossed.

Justification for Relief:
Concrete encasement will be provided as required where sewer mains cross water mains per
DEP requirements. A waiver of the requirement to concrete encase sewer pipes that cross storm

sewer pipes with separation of less than 18 inches cannot be maintained but more than 12 inches
is maintained is requested and for the sewer forcemain where the pipe is installed by boring.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Sewer and watetline pipe crossings will be installed .per DEP
requirements. Sewer and storm sewer pipe crossings will be
installed to acceptable construction standards.

Review Comment 61



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-55.B(1)(a)

Section 390-55.B(1)(a)

(1) Preservation of existing vegetation. Each mature tree, tree mass, or woodland on the site shall
be designated "TO REMAIN" or "TO BE REMOVED" and shall be shown on the plan in
accord with the following criteria:

(a) All subdivisions and land developments shall be laid out in such a manner as to
minimize the removal of healthy trees and shrubs on the site. Mature trees (six inches
or greater dbh) shall be preserved insofar as possible; and special consideration shall be
given to major specimen trees (12 inches or greater dbh). The plan shall show the
location of major specimen trees in areas of the site proposed for development, and the
edge of existing woodlands.

Justification for Relief:

The site is mostly forested. Tree masses will be maintained on undisturbed areas of the site as
indicated on C.LO01, especially in steep slope areas. Thousands of trees will be preserved. The
limit of disturbance (LED) will be marked in the field to protect trees beyond the limit of the
LED, although some trees in close proximity to the LED may be removed as necessary.

The site design has carefully considered ways to limit impacts to wooded areas and conservation
areas. A waiver is requested of the requirements to delineate individual specimen trees over 12
inches for preservation based on the site constraints unique to this project where complete tree
clearing areas are required to accomplish the stie grading in the development areas of the site and
significant areas of tree preservation are proposed in environmentally sensitive areas.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes. X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Thousands of trees will be preserved in environmentally sensitive
areas meeting the goals of the Ordinance.

Review Comment 65



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development:  Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-55.C(2)(e)

Section 390-55.C(2)(e)
Planting islands shall be a minimum of nine feet by 18 feet in dimension, underlain by soil (not
base course material); mounded at no more than a 3:1 slope, nor less than a 5:1 slope; and shall

be protected by curbing or bollards. Each planting island shall contain a minimum of one shade
tree plus shrubs and/or ground cover sufficient to cover the entire area.

Justification for Relief:

The planting island details have been added to the plan. Rock mulch is provided as an attractive

and maintainable accent to vegetated ground cover. A waiver is requested to allow rock mulch
to be included in the landscape design.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Vegetated and rock mulch ground cover will be provided as an
attractive and maintainable landscape feature.

Review Comment 69



Date: _12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-55.C(2)(h)

Section 390-55.C(2)(h) The use of plants selected from the List of Acceptable Plan in § 390-55H
is required. In accordance with Section 390-55.C.(2)(h), “The use of plants selected from the List
of Acceptable Plants in § 390-55H is required.” In accordance with Section 390-55.H., “All
plants used for landscaping and vegetative cover shall be selected from the List of Acceptable
Plants attached hereto as Appendix A.”

The request is to use the following plant species for landscaping.

a. Andromeda polifolia /Bog Rosemary
Justification for Relief:

This species provides evergreen foliage and flowers like a rhododendron with resistance to deer
browsing.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No

Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Expanding Township list of plans with other suitable the varieties
to meet site specific challenges and goals should be encouraged.

Review Comment 72



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-55.E(3)

Section 390-55E(3) Minimum grades inside stormwater basins shall be 1% unless infiltration is
an integral part of the design; and maximum side slopes of the basin shall be 33% (3:1 slope)

Justification for Relief:

The stormwater facilities propose both infiltration and evapotranspiration (ET) to manage the
volume and water quality increase based upon onsite soils testing. The proposed facilities are
graded with a flat bottom slope to maximize storage, infiltration and ET volumes to meet the

permit requirements. Therefore, we are requesting a waiver to allow flat bottom basins at 0%
slope.

The NPDES standards provide for grading to be stabilized with vegetation up to slopes to 2
horizontal to 1 vertical (2:1). Slopes 3:1 and over require erosion control matting to aid in the
establishment of vegetation. To minimize the impact to existing vegetated area we are
requesting to grade proposed slopes to a (2:1) slope using the required erosion control matting to
establish the vegetation or provide another stable surface. The stability of these slopes are
documented in the geotechnical report prepared for the site.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Basing slopes will be graded to provide stable slopes and
stormwater quality goals will be met.

Review Comment 75



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 390-58.B(1), 390-58.C(1),
390-59.F, 390-59.K

Section 390-58.B(1)

This § 390-58 shall apply to any subdivision for which a preliminary plan or a combined preliminary/final plan and
any land development for which a plan is submitted after the effective date of this § 390-58.

Section 390-38.C.(1)

The proposal for common open space, installation of recreation facilities and/or fees shall be offered for review by
the Planning Commission and the Pocono Township Park and Recreation Committee.

Section 390-59.F

Fees. If the Board of Commissioners and the applicant agree that a proposed subdivision or land development will
pay fees-in-lieu of dedicating open space, this fee shall be as established by the Township Fee Schedule, which may
be updated by resolution of the Board of Commissioners.

Section 390-59.K

Combination of land and fees. Upon mutual agreement of the Board of Commissioners and the applicant, the
Township may accept a combination of common open space and fees-in-lieu of land to meet the requirements of this
§ 390-58 for a subdivision or land development. For a residential development, this combination shall be based
upon the common open space requirement applying for a certain number of dwelling units and the fee-in-lieu of
land requirement applying for the remaining number of dwelling units. Section 390-58H shall be considered when
applying this § 390-581.

Justification for Relief:

The proposed project will provide a positive tax benefit to the Township, County and State. The
project provides recreation and service to residents and guests of the community. The project
does not provide new housing units that will increase the number of residents in the Township
and impact the use and demand of existing open space facilities. Based on the specific
characteristics of this project, a waiver request of the requirement to provide open space or a fee
in lieu of open space is requested.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No

Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance alter
the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: The proposed project will provide a positive fiscal impact to the
Township, County and State and does not create a need for additional
Open Space areas.

Review Comment 87



Date: _12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development:  Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance:  390-59.B.

Parking Space Width - Parking space and aisle dimensions shall be no less than 10 wide by 18’
deep for 90 degree parking angles as listed on the table.

Justification for Relief:

The Pocono Zoning Ordinance allows a minimum parking space size of 9 feet wide. The
Pocono SALDO requires a minimum of a 10-foot wide parking space. We request a
modification to implement the parking space dimensions specified in the Zoning Ordinance to
allow the 9-foot wide parking spaces. This design will minimize grading requirements and
impervious areas created by the parking pavement.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: The waiver is required for consistency with the Zoning
Ordinance.

Review comment 88



Date: _ 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance: 365-8.L

Section 365-8.L

Roof drains and sump pumps shall discharge to infiltration or vegetative BMPs wherever
feasible. Roof drains should not be connected to streets, sanitary or storm sewers or roadside
ditches in order to promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation of stormwater. Considering
potential pollutant loading, roof drain runoff in most cases will not require pretreatment.

Justification for Relief:

The proposed use consists of the Nordic spa building and associated amenities including
maintenance and employee housing buildings. The buildings have pavement and steep slopes
surrounding the improvement area. The increase in stormwater generated from the proposed
improvements need to be managed within a stormwater management facility to meet PADEP
and Township ordinance requirements. Given the proposed layout and existing topography,
there are concerns with erosion and water freezing on pavement in winter conditions if
disconnection is proposed. Therefore, it is not practical to disconnect the runoff from streets and
storm sewers while also conveying the runoff to the stormwater management basin. The storm
sewer collection system from the roofs drains to Basin 1 and 4 which utilizes infiltration and
evapotranspiration while also providing water quality benefits.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Runoff discharges to infiltration and ET facilities consistent with
the goals of this ordinance

Review Comment 2 (SM Review)



Date; 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development:  Brookdale Spa

Section of Stormwater Management Ordinance: 365-13(B)

All calculations consistent with this chapter using the Soil Cover Complex Method shall use the
appropriate design rainfall depths for the various return period storms according to the region in
which they are located as presented in Table B-1 in Appendix AL of this chapter. If a hydrologic
computer model such as PSRM or HEC-1 is used for stormwater runoff calculations, then the
duration of rainfall shall be 24 hours. The NRCS "S" curve shown in Figure B-1, Appendix A of
this chapter, shall be used for the rainfall distribution.

Justification for Relief:

The design is proposing to utilize the NOAA Atlas 14 rainfall data, a standard more current than
the sources referenced in the Stormwater Management Ordinance. This data is utilized in the
NPDES permit applications submitted to MCCD and PADEP. Therefore, for consistency with

the NPDES permit application, we are requesting to utilize NOAA Atlas 14 rainfall data for the
stormwater management design

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Utilizing NOAA 14 rainfall data is consistent with NPDES Permit
requirements.

Review Comment 10 (SM Review)



Date: 12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Stormwater Management Ordinance:  365-13(D)

All calculations using the Rational Method shall use rainfall intensities consistent with
appropriate times-of-concentration for overland flow and return periods from the design storm
curves from Pennsylvania Department of Transportation Design Rainfall Curves (1986) (Figures
B-2 to B-4). Times-of-concentration for overland flow shall be calculated using the methodology
presented in Chapter 3 of Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds, NRCS, TR-55 (as amended or
replaced from time to time by NRCS). Times-of- concentration for channel and pipe flow shall
be computed using Manning's Equation.

Justification for Relief:

The Kirpch formula is a standard formula for estimating flow times in channels. Manning’s flow
requires that you assume a flow rate to drain in a channel with an assumed geometry. This
method is suitable for estimating time of concentrations (Tc) and typically yields shorter Tc’s
resulting in (slightly) conservative high design rainfall intensities. Therefore, we are requesting
to utilize the Kirpch formula for calculating times of concentration.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: The Kirpch formula is an acceptable method to calculate flow
times in channels consistent with the goals of this ordinance

Review Comment 11 (SM Review)



Date: _12-18-2024

REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION

Name of Applicant: Brookdale Enterprises LLC

Name of Subdivision or Land Development: Brookdale Spa

Section of Stormwater Management Ordinance: 365-13(E)

Runoff curve numbers (CN) for both existing and proposed conditions to be used in the Soil
Cover Complex Method shall be obtained from Table B-2 in Appendix A of this chapter.

Justification for Relief:

The design is proposing to utilize the DEP Spreadsheet curve numbers, a standard more current
than the sources referenced in the Stormwater Management Ordinance. These curve numbers
are utilized in the NPDES permit applications submitted to MCCD and PADEP. Therefore, for
consistency with the NPDES permit application, we are requesting to utilize curve numbers from
the DEP spreadsheet for the stormwater management design.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes X No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance alter the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No x Explain: Utilizing DEP Spreadsheet curve numbers is consistent with
NPDES Permit requirements.

Review Comment 12 (SM Review)



REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION -Waiver #1

NAME OF APPLICANT: 611 Land Development, LLC

NAME OF SUBDIVISION/LAND DEVELOPMENT: Final Minor Subdivision Plan for 611 Land
Development

SECTION OF SUBDIVSION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE INVOLVED:

SALDO Section 390-43. A. (10), “Lot lines should follow municipal county boundary lines, rather
than cross them. Reserve strips controlling access to lots, public right of way, public lands or
adjacent private lands are prohibited.”

SALDO Section 390-47. C. (2), “Lots divided by Municipal boundaries shall be avoided. Where a
Subdivision is divided by a municipal boundary, the applicant shall so notify the governing body of
each municipality affected so that an administrative agreement for the platting, and texting of lots
between the municipalities can be executed, if such agreement is necessary.

JUSTIFICATION FOR RELIEF:

The existing 46.503 parcel to be subdivided lies within three municipalities. The northeast corner of
the property is in Stroud Township, 3.784 acres. The remaining parcel is bisected by the Hamilton /
Pocono Township boundary line. The township line crosses the site in a northeasterly direction
from S.R. 0611. There are 21.415 acres in Pocono Township and 21.304 acres in Hamilton
Township.

As indicated on the Minor Final Subdivision Plan for 611 Land Development, LLC, the proposed lot
#2is a 4.676-acre parcel, in which 0.867 acres is within Pocono Township and 3.809 acres is in
Hamilton. As indicated in the submitted Land Development plans, lot #2 will be developed with a
Dual Brand Hotel by Marriott. The area of Lot #2 was selected to be developed, since the majority
of the lot has an average ground slope between 4 to 8 percent, except for the existing embankment
along S.R. 0611. Access to Lot #2 will be from S.R. 0611 as well. Most of the embankment area was
previously disturbed when the gravity and force main sewer lines were installed by the sewer
authority. Access to Lot #2 will be from S.R. 0611 as well. The proposed development is situated
between watercourses C, D, and E. Due to the existing water course C, bisecting the property in a
south westerly direction, and the location of the existing wetland areas, the proposed development
cannot be moved to the south or to the east. The development cannot be moved closure to S.R.
0611 due to the existing sanitary sewer easement that parallel S.R. 0611 as well.

The majority of development for Lot #2 is located within Hamilton Township, which includes the
proposed hotel building. Within Pocono Township, is a small portion access road, 8 parking
spaces, loading zones for the hotel, dumpster corral, and storage shed.

Due to existing water courses, wetlands, and existing sewer easements on the property, it is not
possible for the boundary line of Lot #2 to follow the municipal boundary. The residual lot, Lot #1
contain 41.826 acre will also be located in three municipalities as well. The portion of Lot #1 within
Stroud Township cannot be created as a separate lot, since this will be a landlock parcel which is
not allowed by Section 390-43A.5 of the SALDO.



Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X__No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes _X__No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance alter
the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No_X__ Explain:

Since the existing parcel to be subdivided lies within three municipalities which pre-dates the
SALDO, the proposed development does not alter the intent of the SALDO. The proposed
development minimizes impacting the sensitive natural resources on site. Of the 46.5 acres site,
there are only 6.285 acres of disturbance proposed for the development.



REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION -Waiver #2

NAME OF APPLICANT: 611 Land Development, LLC

NAME OF SUBDIVISION/LAND DEVELOPMENT: Lot #2 - Dual Brand Hotel by Marriott- Final
Land Development Plan

SECTION OF SUBDIVSION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE INVOLVED:

Ordinance No. 2022-06 Stormwater Management Ordinance, Section 365-10 (I) Buffers. Section

365.10 (1) 8 Streams a, b, c

a.) Stream buffer delineation. A fifty-foot buffer, measured perpendicular to and horizontally from
the top -of -bank on all sides of any stream, shall be maintained on all sides of any stream, with the
exception of the Pocono Creek, where the buffer shall be 75 feet, measured perpendicular to and
horizontally from the top -of - bank on all sides of the Pocono Creek. In addition, where the 100 feet
of land adjacent to the edge of a stream has an average upland slope greater than 5%, the
minimum buffer width shall be increased by four feet for each percent of slope at or above 5%,
subject to a maximum cumulative buffer of 100 feet. See Figure 365- 10I, below.

b) Permitted activities/ development. Stormwater conveyance required by the municipality or other
body or agency having jurisdiction, buffer maintenance and restoration, the correction of
hazardous conditions, stream crossings permitted by DEP, fish hatcheries, wildlife sanctuaries and
boat launch sites constructed so as not to increase the floodplain elevation, and unpaved trails,
shall be permitted, providing no buildings are involved. No other earth disturbance, grading, filling,
buildings, structures, new construction, or development shall be permitted.

c) The area of the buffer altered by activities permitted in accordance with 365- 101(8)( b) shall be
minimized to the greatest extent practicable, as determined by the municipality. In no case shall
more than 20% of the cumulative stream buffer on the subject parcel be altered by the activities
permitted in accordance with § 365- 10I( 8)( b). This twenty-percent disturbance shall include both
the disturbance created by the applicant and any subsequent owner of the parcel or a portion of
the parcel developed by the applicant (i.e., lot owner).

JUSTIFICATION FOR RELIEF:

As depicted on the attached Sketch Plans SK-3 and SK-4, there is a total disturbance of the stream
buffer of 18,844 SF within Pocono Township. The buffer as shown on the plans is 100 feet wide, due
to the upstream slopes on the property. There is 7,777 SF of disturbance on Lot #1 and 11,067 SF of
disturbance on Lot #2.

Of the 11,067 SF of disturbed stream buffer on Lot #2, 3,149 SF of the disturbance is for the
installation of the outlet pipe and rock apron from Constructed Wetland Basin #1, diversion swale
#1, and the removal and replacement of the existing 12” TCP Pipe with a new headwall & 18” SLCPP
storm sewer just upstream of existing culvert A along S.R. 0611. The discharge from the basin
needs to flow into existing water course E in order for the water course to have base flow as well as
providing runoff to sustain the adjacent wetland area.



REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION -Waiver #2

NAME OF APPLICANT: 611 Land Development, LLC

NAME OF SUBDIVISION/LAND DEVELOPMENT: Lot #2 — Dual Brand Hotel by Marriott- Final
Land Development Plan

SECTION OF SUBDIVSION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE INVOLVED:

Ordinance No. 2022-06 Stormwater Management Ordinance, Section 365-10 (1) Buffers, Section
365.10 (I) 6 Wetlands a, b, c

a) Wetland identification. Wetlands shall be identified in accord with the 1987 United States Army
Corps of Engineers Manual for Identifying and Delineating Wetlands, as amended, and properly
flagged and surveyed on site to ensure they are protected.

1) Wetlands in an artificial watercourse. Wetlands contained within the banks of an artificial
watercourse shall not be considered for buffer delineation purposes.

2) Wetlands in a natural watercourse. For wetlands contained within the banks of a natural
watercourse, only the stream buffer shall apply.

b) Wetland buffer delineation. A fifty -foot buffer, measured perpendicular to and horizontally from
the edge of the delineated wetland, shall be maintained for all wetlands, with the exception of the
Cranberry Bog, where the buffer shall be 75 feet measured perpendicular to and horizontally from
the edge of the Cranberry Bog. In addition, where the 300 feet of land adjacent to the edge of a
delineated wetland has an average upland slope greater than 5%, the minimum buffer width shall
be increased by four feet for each percent of slope at or above 5%, subject to a maximum
cumulative buffer of 100 feet.

1) Permitted activities/development. Stormwater conveyance required by the municipality
or other body or agency having jurisdiction; buffer maintenance and restoration; the
correction of hazardous conditions; stream crossings permitted by DEP and passive
unpaved stable trails shall be permitted within the wetland buffer. No other earth
disturbance, grading, filling, buildings, structures, new construction, or development
shall be permitted within the wetland buffer.

2) The area of the wetland buffer altered by activities permitted in accordance with
Subsection I(6)( b)[ 1] above shall be minimized to the greatest extent practicable, as
determined by the municipality. In no case shall more than 20% of the cumulative
wetland buffer on the subject parcel be altered by the activities permitted in accordance
with Subsection I(6)( b)[ 1]. This twenty -percent disturbance shall include both the
disturbance created by the applicant and any subsequent owner of the parcel or a portion
of the parcel developed by the applicant (i.e., lot owner).



JUSTIFICATION FOR RELIEF:

As depicted on the attached Sketch Plans SK-3 and SK-4, there is a total disturbance of the wetland
buffer of 4,423 SF within Pocono Township. The buffer as shown on the plans is 100 feet wide, due
to the upstream slopes on the property. The wetland buffer as shown is beyond the stream buffer.
There is 185 SF of disturbance on Lot #1 and 4,238 SF of disturbance on Lot #2.

Of the 4,238 SF of disturbed wetland buffer on Lot #2, 1,075 SF of the disturbance is for the
installation of the outlet pipe from Constructed Wetland Basin #1 and diversion swale #1. The
discharge from the basin needs to flow into existing water course E in order for the water course to
have base flow as well as providing runoff to sustain the adjacent wetland area.

The remaining 3,163 SF of wetland buffer disturbance on Lot #2 consists of 2,398 SF pavement and

765 SF of vegetative embankment areas, necessary to facilitate the construction of the proposed
access drive and parking areas.

Due to the existing topography, existing water courses, and wetlands that exist on the property, the
proposed project has been designed to minimize the amount of disturbance on the site. Ofthe
overall site being 46.503 acres, site a total of 6.285 acres of disturbance is proposed. Water
courses E and D are located on the north side of the property and have an overall drainage area of
28.134 acres. More of the wetland buffer disturbance occurs on the north side of Lot #2 to avoid
disturbance of water course C. Watercourse C bisects the property. Watercourse C has an overall
drainage of 65.368 acres and has more natural stream characteristics. The majority of the
disturbance is due to the replacement of existing Culvert C and

On Lot #1, the total wetland buffer area disturbance is 185 SF., which is for the removal of the
chicken coop and gravel drive.

Is the hardship self-imposed? Yes X__No
Is the hardship related to financial issues? Yes _X__No

Will relief from the referenced section of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance alter
the intent of the Ordinance?

Yes No _X__ Explain:

The total wetland buffer on Lots #1 and #2 in both Hamilton and Pocono Township is 166,400 SF or

3.820 acres. The total proposed disturbance of the wetland buffers in both municipalities is 20,904
SF or 0.480 acres. The equates to be only 12.56% of the total wetland buffers. Per the ordinance, a
total of 20% of the wetland buffers can be disturbed.

Per the NPDES Permit requirements, a total of 2.090 acres of Riparian Forested Buffer Planting will
be installed along watercourses C and F, as well to offset the impact of any disturbance within 150’
of the existing water course. The proposed Stormwater BMPs for the development also reduce the
pollutant loading of TSS, Total Phosphorus, and Total Nitrogen for the 2.090 acres of the riparian
buffer disturbed as well.

No wetlands are proposed to be disturbed on either Lot #1 or Lot #2. The volume of runoff to the
wetlands will remain similar to existing conditional. The rate of runoff to the existing wetland
adjacent to the water courses D & E was reduced to account for the limited capacity of existing
culvert A.



As indicated on the plans, the total Preservation Areas, 50’ wide stream easements, and slope
easements within Hamilton, Pocono, and Stroud Township for Lots #1 and #2 are 858,934 SF or

19.718 acres. This represents 42.4% of the overall parcel, which excludes the disturbance of any
wetland buffers.



SH344Ng ANVILIM. — — — TONVRANLSIO D LN mmmmmmmmm =N e e L N S L 00 05 0
m x OZ< §<wmu—nw 2 \/\ \\ ml—omzw I ======2%2>7 3 F HIDTAIO YHYH 4G 6T 6L =L 100 A
s x | 7 A i\ N

I S5LmL
SN

T9CU=N9 N M
-3 /wx? 33 AYM-40-1HOIH HLAIM 378V,

Lo aw ow -

09 650 =<2/1 *m

/i M 100N IS
lllrlllll - mm mommm e mwomm llllll/rulrmﬂ% - -
2§ T 5] S S A N A

P — -

_ /rl\: 4<ur

o pdisteil gl H
5T T SLT WU AT 56 65 mIALE NN
R - = —| “mars aox61
HYA

\ SO BRI =ATLT 2028

e .
NONJNALIG.LE. b - =
By —snoy)

~ N ; 5
! e e == {1 -
w \ Q1 DL =AM 28 .81 :mmm | » 5 - | \ ¢ hY
)8 |/|,1 m_.c_mnw_lleﬂalxu\n|||lln e Do e fow v vony s i = sl ~wy

\S‘Q\s.sld o, 0500 41 OMT .

23 5 ..

{1/
!

\.\'
\

(Y
1Y [7r 7 i
X : : 7 iy T0d,
AV _p S . - \u@»l 4 4 (3
23 7T y S:uw&\:asq ‘Q\u.xu
7\ o\
i N it \
z B aiC 2 { i \ RN
ZZa B . wnu.\l.nw\g;tb\ -
4IS(“.MS_ amrs Ak ZZpe N“ 5 | s oy &.&Q«JE%\_E\S A
= \\\AZ NS AW W / 9Y20%Y) #
il = ZZ \ ) WY 30804 Y HYS A
=i — 2 | £ /s
) =iz \
: N
| )= |2o ¢ \ :
T T 22— -
LA, Sk \ /) -
) s % \ NG oon ¢ Z,
3 % Z =z LS54 AN
= S e — ) )
) N ZEN o 1 v oy
5 = By 2 \u fort ot ~
S = iz =NV ) Z B
1 " SraL ..Waw / FE = 2 \
: | e e T = 3 -t 9290 AN
i r54Hn rus e b \! /N o5 B
- - e
ZZ
2 - SZHA NI Jd=
L <

L
-
—
\

Lonr-w

SOV 99 -
— SNooY ow_mo 4S QON ¢oc o

T 1) A7
A

/

STV Ize or. oo

| T by | ] e

= =
a —
- - - 1\L-‘|
S e A
s - s |
=" LA»%EC%&. ; ~ .
.tw : . . . -~ v\ N
| -

055LLmIL

i,

Szo0z w101
= Y0 1S 866°128°I ¢ 1308vd
i 101 e=9e/i/eer p
i 0269, = 344 \ — 4 - ov 9959/
1405 zio's- ~¢R—107 $39VdS ONINNVd BZ1 \ - — — 45 £69'6102 /
i %o_%ﬁ: A8 B, SINOIS ¥ \ NOID3S NIALY
LOH ONvyE vna HI=S .8-6V = LHOI3H ONIQING LA [— m\: | el [ 190ava”
Mo - — /hﬁm-nmmm\%nw
e N &
Do T e

,
4
B
-

R e i

/ e

— 777" "dML NOLTNVH NI 3DNVBANLSIQ
/ — T

‘y \\\\ -

277 ININJOTIAIA ONYT 119
.40 SaNVT /N
L Z-98/1/2/21 Ol XVl

‘dML NOLTIAVH NI 3DNVBYNLSId

‘diMl ONOJOd NI JONVEYNLSIa
¥344N8 GNVIL3M 001

‘dMl ONOJOd NI 3ONVBANLSIO
¥344N8 AY3IILS Wv3YLS 001

‘dML NOLTINVH NI 3ONvEUNLSIa
4334n8 ONVIL3M SL
43448 ONVILIM 0

y344n8 WY3HLS WVIULS SL

‘dML NOLTINYH NI 3ONvENNLSIa

4334N8 WY3YLS WV3HIS 05




SHI44Ng ANV 1LIM N\ } 2o FONVENNLSIO SO LMD MEENmEEmm = Feo Hlu 001 05 0

) N =t
N oo 0% ,Rt%.d&;xt v . ' ,&\a 13m0 A 1334 NI 3IV0S
—em—— NS i .

/ AVMEUTLHUIE HLUIAN 3 13VIavi 3 &
+ 5
. \ i N
2 EPIEH \.\.\ L
£57%9 g 7 %
i I (DR 7 o, ——

- : L AYMLHYO SNONINOLL i
W e N....,....r,-..-‘..«..qu T T el ,FI
-

M A2 61

- R TR AR y ==
~pyes . W e st =3
e »&%s«.nnhly....ﬂunww.wmﬁﬂxmnll)II.vaﬂvi.fliVHP | e\
— - e e R = o N
. : = » e
S 4 e
0 { B\ \S— =
Pt Bl
QO SerIIR s —Z=—2%
it 4 Z —
Zz . i
¥ =ZzZ %
froas ==
\\.Stmsm?//hll.. = Z 2= 2
ZINYY oy — > seuFiedn 7 TN
TG i s N
e —— — Ve
— po 2% 7 AT
= e
C .\\w.w\ W\\\W\w =2
. vt S \\\\ =Z
.XJ < G —|
I A E ZId
; s Z F\ <2
WS oM N
. 7 Ly .
o ™ / SAHIV 949 )
. . .
e T ~ 40 i3S 80.'¢0C o
p , - E Z Y1308 aver —~Z#_107 0769, = 344
. - 7 zZ — 14 i S30VdS ONINNYd BZ1
. z __ Liowuvn a8 B -~ SINOLS ¥ E
A i Z H Hiongived Wl &) e 8-.6¥ = LHOI3H ONIQING . T
g A L. 3 ~
“ . “v s 7 \\. Z m s i
1 Lo -0 3 1
=
‘d1 ONOJOd NI 3ONVENISIa = 88 _000]
¥313N8 GNVIL3M 001 z ;
‘dML ONODOd NI 3ONYBNNLSIO iz
d344N8 WYIULS WYIHIS 001 T
“dL NOLTIHVH NI 3ONVENNISIa e E
A N =
434408 ONVILIM SL = Q)
‘dML NOLTINYH NI 3ONVBYNLSIO =’
¥343n8 ONVILIM 05 Y
"dML NOLTINVH NI JONVBYNLSIO c== S-S
¥334NB WYIULS WVIULS SL S Em—
‘dML NOLTIAVH NI 3ONVBYNLSIO S e T
433408 HY3MLS HV3ULS 0 e e

ve-3mws

R $012770)




\
N
4. '} YOUR GOALS. DUR MISSIDN.

January 21, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: MCTA TRANSIT FACILITY EXPANSION - 134 MCTA DRIVE
PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW NO, 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1421, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0990

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed a review of the Preliminary/Final Land Development
Plan Application for MCTA Transit Facility Expansion. The submitted information consists of the following

items.
e Pocono Township Land Development Application.
e Professional Services Escrow Agreement.
°

Sewage Planning Correspondence to the Township dated October 31, 2024.

MCPC Checklist and email regarding application fee requirements.

ESPC Supporting Calculations prepared by Newell Tereska & Mackay, undated.

* Erosion & Sediment Pollution Control Plans prepared by Newell Tereska & Mackay, 18 sheets, dated
October 25, 2024.

o Post Construction Stormwater Management Report prepared by Newell Tereska & Mackay, dated
November, 2024. ‘

e Post Construction Stormwater Management Report prepared by Newell Tereska & Mackay, 9 sheets,

dated October 25, 2024.

® Monroe County Transit Authority Transit Facility Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan set
prepared by Stantec, 22 sheets, dated November 25, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, Monroe County Transportation Authority, has submitted a plan proposing development to their
existing site at 134 MCTA Drive in Scotrun. The property is located within the C, Commercial, Zoning District
and consists of a single parcel (Tax ID No. 12/11/1/22). The property has an area of 36.148 acres and contains
an existing maintenance building, parking areas, fueling area, stormwater management facilities, wooded areas
with steep slopes, an unnamed tributary to the Scot Run watercourse, and wetlands. The site is currently served
by public water and sewer.

The project proposes a new 43,900 square foot building addition, new parking areas, fueling area, salt and
parts storage areas, and additional stormwater management facilities.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 Il 610.625.2999 [l 610.625.2969 tandmassociates.com



S Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
January 21, 2025

Page 2 ol 22

In accordance with Secction 470-20 of the Zoning Ordinance, vehicle service and repair facilities, vehicle
fueling stations, and governmental uses arc permitted within the C, Commercial Zoning District.

The project site is located within the A Stormwater Management District of the Brodhead-McMichaels
Watershed. The receiving water is the Scot Run, which has a Chapter 93 classification of High-Quality, Cold-
Water Fishery with Migratory Fishes (HQ, CWF/MF).

Based upon our review of the above information, we offer the following comments and/or recommendations
related to the proposed development.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

o

Per Section 470-34.D.(1) and (2) , “Required loading spaces. Every building or structure, lot or land
hereafter put to a commercial or industrial use or an cxisting building or structure enlarged shall
provide one off-street truck loading and unloading space for the first 5,000 square feet or less of gross
floor area, plus a minimum of one additional off-street truck loading area for each additional 10,000
square feet of gross floor area.” and *An off-street truck loading space shall be a minimum of 12 feet
in width and a minimum of 35 feet in length.” No loading spaces are shown on the plans. The
applicant shall address truck loading requirements for the site.

In accordance with Section 470-121, no building, structure, or sign shall be erected, constructed,
moved, demolished, added to, or structurally altered, nor shall any use of any land, building structure,
or sign be changed or expanded, without a zoning permit therefor issued by the Zoning Officer. No
such permit shall be issued except in conformity with the provisions of this chapter; and:

a. The applicant supplying satisfactory evidence, where applicable, that the property and the proposed
use thereof in compliance of the Sewage Facilities Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and
regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection.” A/l approvals required by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection
shall be provided to the Township.

b. The applicant supplying, where applicable, stormwater management plans approved by the Pocono
Township Board of Commissioners in accordance with the applicable Pocono Township
stormwater management ordinances, and an erosion and sedimentation control plan approved by
the applicable governmental body or agency charged with that responsibility, with respect to any
proposed construction, excavation, or other earthmoving activity. The proposed earth disturbance
exceeds one (1) acre, and an NPDES Permit is required from the Monroe County Conservation
District. All correspondence with, submissions to, and NPDES Permit from the County
Conservation District shall be provided to the Township.

All proposed signs shall conform to the requirements of Article VII of the Zoning Ordinance and must
receive approval by the Township Zoning Officer prior to erection. A/l proposed signage must be
submitted to and approved by the Township Zoning Officer.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

4.

In accordance with Section 390-29.E.(3), “The survey shall not have an error of closure greater than
one in 10,000 feet and shall include a boundary closure report.” The boundary closure report shall be
submitted.



10.

ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.l
January 21, 2025

Page 3 0f 22

In accordance with Section 390-29.E.(4), “The sheet size shall be no larger than 24 inches by 36 inches,
unless permitted by the Planning Commission.” The submitted plans are 30"x42" in size and shall be
modified to meet the permitted size accordingly.

In accordance with Section 390-29.F, Site context map. *A map compiled from existing information
showing the location of the proposed major subdivision within its neighborhood context shall be
submitted. For sites under 100 acres in area, such maps shall show the relationship of the subject
property to natural and man-made features existing within 1,000 feet of the site. For sites of 100 acres
or more, the map shall show the above relationships within 2,000 feet of the site. The features that shall
be shown on site context maps include topography (from USGS maps), stream valleys, wetland
complexes (from maps published by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service or the USDA Natural
Resources Conservation Service), woodlands over 1/2 acre in area (from aerial photographs),
ridgelines, public roads and trails, utility casements and rights-of-way, public land, and land protected
under conservation easements.” The Site Context Map shall be prepared and submiited in accordance
with the requirements of this Section. It is suggested that an aerial may be utilized and supplemented
with the required additional information within 1,000 feet of the site.

Inaccordance with Section 390-29.G, Existing resources and site analysis. “For all land developments,
an existing resources and site analysis shall be prepared to provide the developer and the municipality
with a comprehensive analysis of existing conditions, both on the proposed development site and
within 500 feet of the site. Conditions beyond the parcel boundaries may be described on the basis of
existing published data available from governmental agencies, and from aerial photographs. The
Planning Commission shall review the plan to assess its accuracy, conformance with municipal
ordinances, and likely impact upon the natural and cultural resources on the property.” The information
required in Subsections (1) through (12) shall be included. The Existing Resources and Site Analysis
plan shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with the requirements of this Section including,
but not limited to. an aerial photograph, identification of slopes between 15% and 25%, and vegetative
cover conditions. Additionally, it shall cover the area of the proposed development site and within 500

Jeet of the site.  All easements and other encumbrances of property which are or have been filed of

record with the Recorder of Deeds of Monroe County shall be shown on the plan. Topography shall
be coordinated with official USGS benchmarks and the location and datum shall be shown on the plan.
This may be combined with the site context map.

In accordance with Section 390-29.H, a resource impact and conservation analysis are required. 4
Resource Impact and Conservation Analysis shall be provided on the plan and shall include the
existing resouirces in square feet, the proposed disturbance of the existing resources in square feet and
percent, and the maximum permitied disturbance.

Per Section 390-29.1.(2), the improvements plan shall include “Existing and proposed lot lines, lot
areas, full lot grading, driveway locations and elevations, and any existing easements and rights-of-
way.” It is noted that a number of utility poles are located along the rear property line. The plans
shall depict any easements or rights-of-way that are located on the property for this or any other
purpose.

Per Section 390-29.1.(13)(a), the improvements plan shall include the “Locations of existing and
proposed utility easements.” [t is noted that a number of utility poles are located along the rear
property line. The plans shall depict any easements or rights-of-way that are located on the property

Jor this or any other purpose. Additionally, any new easements shall be shown on the plan.



12.

16.

17.

19.

20.

? Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
January 21. 2025

Page 4 of 22

Per Section 390-29.1.(15), the improvements plan shall include A signature block in the lower right
hand cighth of the plan immediately above the title block for recommendation by the Planning
Commission and for the approval of the Board of Commissioners shall be provided including a space
for the date of recommendation/approval.™ Pocono Township's specific sighatuie block language will
he provided directly to the design engineer for incorporation onto the plans.

Per Section 390-29.1.(16), the improvements plan shall include “Signature blocks for the Township
Engineer and Monroe County Planning Commission.” Pocono Township's specific signature block
language will be provided directly to the design engineer for incorporation onto the plans.

Per Section 390-29.1.(20), the improvements plan shall include the “Name and address of the owner of
record (if a corporation, give name of each officer) and current deed book and page where the deed of
record is recorded.” The required deed book and puge information shall be pirovided on the plan.

Per Section 390-29.1.(25), the improvements plan shall include a “North arrow (true or magnetic)”.
The north arvow shall be lubeled as cither being true or magnelic.

Per Section 390-29.1.(29), the improvements plan shall include a “Certificate of ownership and
acknowledgment of the plan, in the form provided by the Township, which shall be accurately
completed, signed by the owner of the property, dated and notarized.™ The certificate on the plan must
be corrected to reflect the required language. Sample certificate language will be provided directly to
the design engineer for incorporation onto the plans.

Per Section 390-29.1.(30), the improvements plan shall include a “Certificate of accuracy and
compliance, in the form provided by the Township, dated and signed by the registered professional
land surveyor responsible for the plan and embossed with his or her seal.” Pocono Township's
certificate of accuracy and compliance language will be provided directly to the design engineer for
incorporation onto the plans.

Per Section 390-29.1.(32)(c), “Utility, drainage and slope easements™ shall be on all land development
plans in the form of protective covenants and/or notes. The applicable utility and slope easement
information shall be added to the plans.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(h), the following note is required on the land development
plans: "By approval of this plan the Township has neither confirmed nor denied the existence and/or
extent of any wetland areas whether or not delineated on the plan and any encroachment thereon for
any reason whatsoever shall be the sole responsibility of the subdivider and/or developer, his heirs,
successors and assigns and shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Army Corps of Engineers and/or
the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection and said encroachment shall conform to the
rules and regulations of the jurisdictional agencies." The required note shall be added.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(1), the following note is required on the land development
plans: “This plan is under and subject to all of the rules, regulations, requirements and restrictions as
set forth in the Pocono Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance and the Pocono
Township Zoning Ordinance, as both are amended.” The required note shall be added.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(j), the applicable highway occupancy note(s) shall appear on
the plan: “A highway occupancy permit is required pursuant to Section 420 of the Act of June [, 1945



[R)
bo

[S®]
L2

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

—Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review Noll——
January 21, 2025
Page 5 of 22

ﬁ Pocone Township Planning Commission

(P.L. 1242, No. 428), known as the 'State Highway Law,' before driveway access to a state highway is
permitted”; and/or A highway occupancy permit is required pursuant to the Pocono Township Road
Encroachment Ordinance before driveway access to a Township road is permitted.” The applicable
note(s) shall also state: *Access to the public road shall be only as authorized by a highway occupancy
permit.” The required note shall be added.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(1), the following note is required on the land development
plans: “The applicant, his heirs, successors or assigns will implement all requirements and obtain all
permits and approvals as required by any and all local, state or federal agencies and authorities, and
does hereby acknowledge and agree that if said permits and approvals are not obtained as required,
then any and all approvals given by Pocono Township will become null and void with no further action
on the part of the Township.” The required note shall be added.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(m), the plan shall contain “A listing of any subdivision/land
development waivers or modifications, zoning variances, special exceptions and/or conditional uses
that have been granted, including the date of the order of the Pocono Township Zoning Hearing Board
or Board of Commissioners granting the same.” The referenced information shall be listed on the
plans, as applicable.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(n), “If the plans include any stormwater management
planning, controls or devices, the following covenant shall appear on the plan: "The owners, their heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, shall make provision and be responsible for the
installation, maintenance, operation and repair of any and all stormwater management facilities and
controls depicted on this plan and other plans and documents supporting the same, including, but not
limited to, all infiltration devices, buffers, detention basins, inlets, swales, pipes, berms and spreaders.
Pocono Township is hereby granted the right to inspect all permanent stormwater management
facilities and controls at any reasonable time. If Pocono Township determines at any time that any of
said stormwater management facilities or controls have been eliminated, altered, or improperly
maintained, the then owner shall be advised of the corrective measures required and be afforded a
reasonable period of time to take the necessary corrective action. Pocono Township shall have the
right, but not the obligation, of ingress, egress and regress to any and all of the stormwater management
facilities and controls, as well as upon and within the utility and drainage easements as shown on this
plan, for the purpose of installation, maintenance and/or repair due to the failure or neglect of the owner
to perform the same within the time required, or for emergency remedies to the stormwater
management facilities and controls if necessary, if Pocono Township elects to perform such
installation, maintenance and/or repair. All costs and expenses incurred by Pocono Township in
relation to any work performed by Pocono Township pursuant to the provisions of this covenant and/or
the enforcement of the same, shall be the joint and several responsibility of the owner and any occupier
of the property who violated the provisions of this covenant, payable by the owners and/or occupiers
of the property, their heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns upon demand by Pocono
Township, and shall constitute a lien against the property until paid in full. The remedies of Pocono
Township pursuant to this covenant are in addition to all other rights and remedies available to Pocono
Township, its successors, and assigns, pursuant to any statute, ordinance, law or in equity. All of the
foregoing is more particularly and at large provided in that certain Stormwater Management
Agreement and Declaration of Easement between the owner and the Township dated ;

20 , the terms and provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference. This covenant shall
run with the land.” The covenant shall be added to the plan.



[N
Il

30.

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025

Page 6 of 22

ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(2), “Exterior elevations of any proposed buildings including at
least the front and side elevations™ shall be provided. Architectural renderings of the front and side
elevations of the proposed building shall he submitted.

[n accordance with Section 390-29.J.(3), “Any existing or proposed deed restrictions, protective and
restrictive covenants that apply to the land development plan™ shall be provided. The existing access
easement and the slope easements must be shown.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(6), the plan submission shall include “Proof of legal interest in
the property, a copy of the latest deed of record and current title scarch report.” The Applicant shall
provide the latest deed of record and current title search report.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(7)(¢), Water supply information. Publicly owned central system.
“A letter from the water company or authority stating that said company or authority will supply the
development including a verification of the adequacy of service.” A leter from BCRA shall be
provided verifving adequate service of the proposed development.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(8)(a), “Completed sewage facilities planning module(s) for land
development and other required sewage planning documents as required by the Pennsylvania Sewage.
Facilities Act and PADEP.” The Applicant shall provide a copy of the PADEP Act 537 Appioval to
the Township. The Sewage Facilities Planning Module has been reviewed under separate cover.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(8)(c), “If service by the Township, a sewer authority or a public
utility is proposed, a letter or other written certification from the Township, the authority or the public
utility stating that it will provide the necessary sewer service and verifying that its system has adequate
capacity to do s0.” The Applicant shall obtain and provide the required written certification from both
BCRA for treatment and the Township for conveyance.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(9), supporting documents to be submitted include “A list of any
public utility, environmental or other permits required and if none are required, a statement to that
effect. The Township may require a professional engineer's certification of such list.” In addition, and
in accordance with Section 390-29.J.(19), “All required state or federal environmental and other
permits.” The Design Engineer shall submit the required list of required permits/approvals to the
Township. The following outside agency approvals are required:

a. Monroe County Planning Commission

b. Monroe County Conservation District/Pennsvlvania Department of Environmental Protection
— NPDES Permit

c.  Pennsvlvania Department of Environmental Protection — Sewage Facilities Planning Module

Pocono Township — Sanitary Sewer Review and Seirvice, all comments received by the

Township Sewer Engineer shall be addressed.

Brodhead Creek Regional Authority — Water Service Will-Serve

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation — Highway Occupancy Permit, if necessaiy

Pocono Township Fire Department

o

uq



MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

%.\ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

(%]
(]

33.

[¥5)
S

36.

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025
Page 7 022

[n accordance with Section 390-29.1.(10), the Applicant shall provide *Confirmation that the soil
erosion and sedimentation control plan has been accepted for review by the Monroe County
Conservation District. (See also §390-51.)" Submissions to, correspondence with, and permil from the
Monroe County Conservation District shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(14), *Where the land included in the subject application has an
electric transmission line, a gas pipeline, or a petroleum or petroleum products transmission line
located within the tract, the preliminary plan shall be accompanied by a letter from the owner or lessee
of such line stating any conditions on the use of the land and the minimum building setback and/or
right-of-way-lines. This requirement may also be satistied by submitting a copy of the recorded
agreement.” The plans depict wility poles along the rear property line adjacent to the properties

JSronting on Scotrun Drive. Additional information regarding any easement or restrictions with respect

to this utility shall be provided.

In accordance with Sections 390-29.J.(15), and 390-48.T.(10), where access is to a state road, a valid
state highway occupancy permit shall be obtained prior to plan recording. Where PennDOT standards
differ from those of the Township, the more restrictive regulations shall apply. In addition, and in
accordance Section 390-33, “The applicant shall not be required to provide financial security for the
costs of any improvements for which financial security is required by and provided to the Pennsylvania
Department of Transportation in connection with the issuance of a highway occupancy permiit pursuant
to Section 420 of the Act of June 1, 1945 (P.L. 1242, No. 428), known as the "State Highway Law."
The applicant shall provide documentation that the required performance guarantee has been provided
to PennDOT.” Submissions to, correspondence with, and permit from the Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation shall be provided if any new Highway Occupancy Permit or amendment to an existing
Highway Occupancy Permit is necessary.

In accordance with Section 390-29.K., the Applicant shall provide a “Community/financial impact
analysis. A community impact analysis including the following information shall be required for... all
nonresidential developments (with the exception of agricultural development) with buildings
containing in excess of 20,000 square feet of floor space in the aggregate;” The required
community/financial impact analysis shall be provided.

Inaccordance with Section 390-30, *“As-built plans shall include the information required by this §390-
30 and additional information may be required on a case-by-case basis.” As-built plans shall be
submitted when construction is complete as outlined in this Section. 4 note requirving an as-built plan
per Section 390-30 of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance shall be provided on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-32.B and Section 390-41, no final plan shall be signed by the Board
of Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds until:

All improvements required by this chapter are installed to the specifications contained in Article VI of

this chapter and other Township requirements and such improvements are certified by the applicant's
engineer; or

Proposed developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with §390-35 and the

Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended, have been accepted by the
Board of Commissioners.



38.

40.

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025

Page 8 of 22

; Pocono Township Planning Commission

The Applicant shall submit a construction cost estimate for the proposed site improvements in order
to determine the required escrow amount for the developer's agreement. A developer's agreement and
performance guarantee will be required prior to plan recordation.

In accordance with Section 390-38.A and Section 390-38.B, the developer shall provide to the
satisfaction of the Board of Commissioners, and prior to final plan approval, evidence of the provision,
including a plan, for the succession of ownership and responsibility for the operation and maintenance
of development improvements.” The required documentation and agreement(s) shall be provided to
the Township prior to final plan approval.

In accordance with Section 390-38.C.(3), “Any improvements which will remain private. In the case
where roads, drainage facilities, a central sewage treatment system or central water supply, or any other
improvements are {0 remain private, the developer shall provide for the establishment of an escrow
fund in accord with §390-35A to guarantee the operation and maintenance of the improvements. Said
fund shall be established on a permanent basis with administrative provisions approved by the Board
of Commissioners. The amount of said fund shall be 15% of the construction cost of the system as
verified by the Township Engineer. The maintenance and operation of the improvements and the
administration of any required maintenance fund account shall be clearly established as the joint
responsibility of the owner(s) of each structure or dwelling unit served by such system. Such
responsibility and the mechanism to accomplish same shall be established by deed covenants and
restrictions which shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Commissioners.”. An operation and
maintenance agreement and guarantee shall be required for the siormwater management facilities.

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(6)(e), “Steep slopes. The purpose of steep slope regulations 1s
to conserve and protect those areas having steep slopes from inappropriate development and excessive
grading; to prevent potential dangers caused by erosion, stream siltation, and soil failure; and to
promote uses in steep slope areas that are compatible with the preservation of existing natural features,
including vegetative cover by restricting grading of steep slope areas.” Steep slopes are defined as
being 20% or greater and shall be identified on the plans accordingly. Additionally, the restrictions
and requirements of this section shall be addressed.

In accordance with Section 390-46.A., “Protection of vegetation from mechanical injury. Where
earthwork, grading, or construction activities will take place in or adjacent to woodlands, old fields or
other significant vegetation or site features, the Township may require that the limit of disturbance be
delineated, and vegetation protected through installation of temporary fencing or other approved
measures. Such fencing shall be installed prior to commencing of, and shall be maintained throughout,
the period of construction activity.” The Erosion & Sedimentation Control Plan shall be revised to
show iree protection fence along the limits of disturbance lines and/or along the dripline of the trees
to be preserved.

In accordance with Section 390-46.C., “Protection of vegetation from excavations. When digging
trenches for utility lines or similar uses, disturbances to the root zones of all woody vegetation shall be
minimized. If trenches must be excavated in the root zone, all disturbed roots shall be cut as cleanly as
possible. The trench shall be backfilled as quickly as possible.” This requirement shall be noted on
the Erosion & Sedimentation Control Plans.

In accordance with Section 390-46.D., resource conservation standards include *“Protection of topsoil.”
The protection of topsoil in accordance with this section shall be addressed on the plans.



44,

45.

46.

48.

49.

50.

ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
January 21, 2025

Page 9 of 22

Per Section 390-48.8. Clear sight triangles. At all road intersections and all land development
driveways/accesses, a triangular arca shall be graded and/or other sight obstructions removed in such
a manner as not to obscure vision between a height of two to 10 feet above the center-line grades of
the intersecting roads.” Clear sight triangles shall be shown on the plan and restrictions noted.

In accordance with Section 390-48. AA, “sidewalks and road crosswalks may be required where
necessary to provide proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities and
common areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-of-way
immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to accommodate road
trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be constructed in accord with the most
current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans with Disabilities Act standards.” Sidewalk shall
be provided along the entire frontage of the development site unless a waiver/deferrval is granted by
the Board of Commissioners.

In accordance with Section 390-49, “Monuments and markers shall be placed so that the center or a
scored or marked point shall coincide with the intersection of the lines to be marked and shall be set to
an accuracy of 0.03 foot; and shall be certified by the project surveyor.” The monuments/markers that
were identified on the recorded MCTA Lot Line Adjustment Plan shail be shown on the submitted Site
Plan.

Per Section 390-50.D.(5), “Embankment slope. The maximum slope of the earthen detention basin
embankments shall be four horizontal to one vertical.” The plan proposes the embankments to be
graded at 3 tol and shall be revised to meet the ordinance requirement accordingly.

Per Section 390-50.D.(8), “In order to ensure proper drainage on the basin bottom, a minimum grade
of 2% shall be maintained for areas of sheet flow.” The basin appears to be flat across the basin
bottom due to its design as an MRC basin. If requested, we would support a waiver to this requirement
since a flat bottom is required for infiltration.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(11)(f), “The construction material of the emergency spillway
shall extend along the upstream and downstream berm embankment slopes.” The spillway stabilization
must be specified and shall be extended along the upstream embankment slope.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(11)(g), “The upstream edge of the emergency spillway shall be
a minimum of three feet below the spillway crest elevation.” The plans shall show the extent of the
spillway material to demonstrate compliance with this requirement.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(11)(h), “The downstream slope of the spillway shall, as a
minimum, extend to the toe of the berm embankment.” The plans shall show the extent of the spillway
material to demonstrate compliance with this requirement.

Per Section 390-50.D.(12), Anti-seep collars are required. The plans shall be revised to show two (2)
anti-seep collars meeting the requirements of this section.

Per Section 390-50.D.(13)(a), “All outlet pipes through the basin berm shall be reinforced concrete

pipe with watertight joints.” The pipe between the outlet structure (ST25) and manhole ST24 shall be
O-ring RCP.



157
wn

60.

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.|
January 21, 2025

Page 10 of 22

=| Pocono Township Planning Commission

Per Section 390-50.D.(14), perforated risers are required. 7The plans shall be revised to show a
perforated riser meeting the requirements of this section.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(15), *All detention/retention basin embankments shall be placed
in a maximum of eight-inch lifts compacted to a minimum of 95% of modified proctor density, as
established by ASTM D-1557. Prior to proceeding to the next lift, the compaction shall be checked by
the Township Engineer or a certified soils engincer. Compaction tests shall be run on the leading and
trailing edge of the berm along with the top of berm.” A note shall be added to the plans outlining
these requirements.

Per Scction 390-50.D.(17), A cutoff trench (keyway) of impervious material shall be provided under
all embankments that require fill material. The cutofI trench shall be a minimum of cight feet wide,
two feet deep and have side slopes of one-to-one.” A keyway meeting the requirements of this section
shall be provided. The Clay Core currently shown on the plans is not adequate in size. Also, the
keyway is required for entire length of the basin berm that is in a fill condition.

In accordance with Sections 390-51.A. and B.. “All soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall
meet the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall comply
with Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control”, and, “Preliminary plan approval shall be
conditioned on all required approvals and permits from the Monroe County Conservation District
and/or PA DEP.” The proposed site disturbance is greater than one (1) acre, therefore an NPDES
Permit is required. A copy of the NPDES Permit and letter of determination of erosion and sediment
control adequacy shall be provided to the Township, as well as any correspondence between the
Applicant and Monroe County Conservation District and PADEP.

In accordance with Section 390-52, “All subdivisions and land developments shall be served by an
adequate water supply and sewage disposal system; and the developer shall provide evidence
documenting said adequacy.” The Applicant shall provide confirmation of adequacy from the
Township and BCRA.

In accordance with Section 390-52.A.(4), “In the case of utilization of a publicly owned or other
existing centralized water supply and/or sewage disposal system the developer shall submit at the
preliminary stage a letter from the operator of such utility indicating the utility owner's willingness to
supply service to the development and including a verification of the adequacy of the utility system to
serve the proposed development. At the final approval stage an executed agreement with the service
supplier shall be submitted.™ 4 copy of the will serve letter for public sanitary sewer seirvice and public
water service shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-52.A.(5), “All required certificates of convenience, approvals and
permits shall be obtained by the developer and/or the utility owner as a condition of preliminary
approval and shall be submitted with the final plan application.” PADEP Act 537 Approval shall be
obtained and a copy of the approval letter from PADEP shall be provided to the Township.

In accordance with Section 390-52.E.(4)(c), “Where water is to be provided by means other than by
private wells owned and maintained by the individual owners of lots within the subdivision or land
development, the applicant shall present evidence to the Township that the subdivision or land
development is to be supplied by a certificated public utility, a bona fide cooperative association of lot



MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

%I\ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

61.

63.

64.

66.

67.

68.

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
January 21, 2025
Page 11 of 22

owners, or by a municipal corporation, authority or utility. A copy of a certificate of public convenience
from the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or an application for such certificate, a cooperative
agreement or a commitment or agreement to serve the area in question, whichever is appropriate, shall
be acceptable evidence. Such evidence shall be provided prior to recording of the final plan.” The
required documentation confirming public water service shall be provided to the Township.

Per Section 390-52.E (4)(f), fire protection standards shall apply to the design and construction of the
water system. Confirmation of compliance with these requirements shall be provided to the Township.

Pursuant to Section 390-55.B.(2), “Protection of existing vegetation. Existing vegetation designated
"TO REMAIN" in accord with Subsection B(1)(c), above, shall be identified in the field prior to any
clearing and shall be physically protected throughout the construction process. A temporary physical
barrier, such as a snow fence, shall be erected a minimum of one foot outside the dripline on all sides
of individual trees, tree masses, or woodlands prior to major clearing or construction. The barrier shall
be placed to prevent disturbance to, or compaction of, soil inside the barrier and shall remain until
construction is complete. The barrier shall be shown on the landscape plan.” Tree protection fencing
shall be shown along the “proposed” treeline. A detail of the fencing shall also be added to the plans.

Per Section 390-55.B.(6), “Clear sight triangles. All landscaping shall comply with the sight distance
requirements of this chapter, including intersections of public streets and access drives of commercial,

industrial, and multifamily developments.” The clear sight triangles shall be shown on the landscaping
plan.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(e), “Planting islands shall be a minimum of nine feet by 18 feet in dimension,
underlain by soil (not base course material); mounded at no more than a 3:1 slope, nor less than a 5:1
slope; and shall be protected by curbing or bollards. Each planting island shall contain a minimum of
one shade tree plus shrubs and/or ground cover sufficient to cover the entire area.” The planting islands
must be identified and dimensioned to demonstrate compliance with this Section.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(f), “All planting strips shall be a minimum of eight feet wide. Strips shall run
the length of the parking row, underlain by soil (not base course material), shall be designed to
encourage the infiltration of stormwater insofar as possible, and shall be protected by curbs, wheel
stops, or bollards. Planting strips shall contain plantings of street-type shade trees at maximum intervals
of tree per 30 feet, plus shrubs and/or ground cover, as approved by the Township, to cover the entire

area.” The proposed planting strip must be dimensioned and the plantings revised to meet the
ordinance requirements.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(g), “The placement of light standards shall be coordinated with the landscape
plan to avoid a conflict with the effectiveness of light fixtures.” The proposed light standards must be
shown on the Landscape Plans.

Per Section 390-55.D.(1)(a), “Street trees required. Street trees shall be required Along all existing

streets abutting or within the proposed subdivision or land development.” Street trees are required
along SR0611.

Per Section 390-55.E.(3), “Basin grades. Minimum grades inside stormwater basins shall be 1% unless
infiltration is an integral part of the design; and maximum side slopes of the basin shall be 33% (3:1
slope).” The basin bottoms are proposed to be flat for managed release (MRC) purposes. Therefore,
we would not be opposed to a waiver to this requirement if the applicant were to request it.



MCTA ‘Transit Facility Expansion

/'O\‘ Pocono Township Planning Commission
I

69.

70.

71.

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
January 21,2025
Page 12 of 22

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(c) and Table 390-55-1, “The width and quantity and type ol
plants required shall be determined by the intensity of the proposed land use and the adjacent land use,
vacant land, or zoning district, according to Table 390-55-1."

a. A 20-foot-wide high intensity buffer is required along the side and rear property line adjacent
to residential uses.

b. A [0-foot-wide low intensity buffer is required along the side property line adjacent to the
commercial/industrial uses.

Buffer calceulations must be provided on the Landscaping Plan. The calculations/tabulation shall
include the property line lengths, the intensity of the buffer, and the required and provided monber of
plants for each.

In accordance with Sections 390-55.F.(3)(g) and (h), “Existing healthy trees, shrubs, or woodlands
may be substituted for part or all of the required plants with the approval of the Township. The
minimum quantities and/or visual effect of the existing vegetation shall be equal to or exceed that of
the required buffer as determined by the Township.” and “Existing topographic conditions, such as
embankments or berms, in conjunction with existing vegetation, may be substituted for part or all of
the required property line buffers with the approval of the Township. The minimum visual eftect shall
be equal to or exceed that of the required buffer.” If the Applicant is requesting either of these
substitutions, a demonstration of the equivalency shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-55.H., “List of acceptable plants. All plants used for landscaping and
vegetative cover shall be selected from the List of Acceptable Plants attached hereto as Appendix A.”
The following are noted with respect to the Appendix 4 Subdivision and Land Development Acceptable
Plant List:

a. Canopy Trees are required to be a minimum 2.3 in caliper, 14-18 feet high with an 8-foot
spread, clear trunk to 7°-0" ahove the ground, and full branching structure. The Plant
Schedule shall be revised to indicate the required height, spread, and conformation.

b. Evergreen trees are required to be a minimum §-feet high, a 4-foot spread, single leader, and
symmetrically branching to the ground. The Plant Schedule shall be revised to indicate the
required height, spread, und conformation.

c. Ornamental trees are requived to be a minimum 8-feet high, a 5-foot spread, and symmetrically
branched to within 4 feet from the ground. The Plant Schedule shall be revised to indicaie the
required height, spread, and conformation.

d. Deciduous Shrubs are required to be a minimum 30-inches high, 24-inches minimum spread,
and symmetrically branched to the ground. The Plant Schedule shall be revised to indicate the
required height, spread, and conformation.

e. Evergreen shrubs are required to be a minimum of 24-inches high, 18-inches minimum spread,
and symmetrically branched to the ground. The Plant Schedule shall be revised to indicate the
required height, spread, and conformation.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1., “Landscape plans shall be prepared by a landscape architect
licensed and registered to practice by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or other person deemed
qualified by the Township.” The landscape plans shall be signed and sealed by the landscape architect
who prepared them.



73.

74.

~J
n

76.

71.

78.

79.

80.

i Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025

Page 13 of 22

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(F), the landscape plan shall show the *Location of all proposed
landscaping, including required street trees, stormwater basin landscaping, parking lot landscaping,
property line buffers, and site element screen landscaping.” Although information is shown on the
PCSM plans, the stormwater basin landscaping shall also be shown on the Landscape Plan per the
ordinance requirement.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(h), the landscape plan shall show “A schedule showing all
landscape requirements and plants proposed for each category.” The required information shall be
added to the plan in the form of a compliance chart or table.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(k), “A detailed cost estimate shall be submitted, showing the
value of all proposed landscaping, including all labor and materials.” 7he required cost estimate for
the project shall include the proposed landscaping.

In accordance with Section 390-56.A.(4)(a), “Lighting plans shall be submitted for reviews and
approval of any installation of lighting in connection with a land development application for any use
identified in Subsection A(2) of this section. Lighting plans shall include the following:
[1] A site plan, complete with all structures, parking spaces, building entrances, traffic areas (both
vehicular and pedestrian), vegetation that might interfere with lighting, and adjacent uses that

might be adversely impacted by the lighting, containing a layout of all propose fixtures by
location and type.

[2] Description of the proposed equipment shall be included, including fixture catalog cuts,
photometrics, glare-reduction devices, lamps and mounting heights.”

The submitted plans do not contain any information on the proposed lighting. Lighting plans
conforming to the ordinance requirements shall be submitted.

In accordance with Section 390-56.A.(5), design standards shall apply to all lighting fixtures. Lighting

plans shall comply with this section and include any notes required with respect to IESNA cutoff
requirements.

Per Section 390-56.A.(6), lighting shall meet the specified performance standards. Lighting plans
conforming to the ordinance performance standards shall be submitted.

Per Section 390-57., “Identification. If a proposed subdivision or land development includes any area
that is suspected of being a wetland, then a professional wetland delineation may be required.” The

- plans show two (2) wetland areas. A map of the wetlands was included as Attachment [ in the PCSM

report, but there is no information as to how or by who the wetlands were identified. The delineation
report shall be provided.

In accordance with the Section 390-58 Common Open Space, Recreation Areas, and In-Lieu Fees:

A. Section 390-58.B.(1), “This §390-58 shall apply to any subdivision for which a preliminary
plan or a combined preliminary/final plan and any land development for which a plan is
submitted after the effective date of this §390-58.”



8l.

i Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Prefiminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2023

Page 14 0f 22

B. Section 390-58.C.(1), “The proposal for common open space, installation of recreation
facilitics and/or fees shall be offered for review by the Planning Commission and the Pocono
Township Park and Recreation Committee.”

C. Section 390-59.F., “Fees. If the Board of Commissioners and the applicant agree that a
proposed subdivision or land development will pay fees-in-lieu of dedicating open space, this
fee shall be as established by the Township Fee Schedule, which may be updated by resolution
of the Board of Commissioners.”

D. Section 390-58.K., “Timing of nonresidential fees. Fees required by this §390-58 for any
nonresidential subdivision or land development shall be paid prior to the recording of the final
plan of a subdivision or land development, as applicable.”

The plans do not propose any open space to be dedicated to the Township, therefore, the Applicant
shall pay the applicable in-lieu fees, as required by Section 390-38. Should it be determined that open
space is required and «a fee in-lieu-of will be provided, that fee will be $14,994.00 (10.71 disturbed
acres * 81,400.00).

[n accordance with the Section 390-59(H)(1), “Each off-street loading and unloading space shall be
either a) at least 14 feet in width by 40 feet in depth or b) at least 10 feet in width by 60 feet in depth.”
No loading spaces are shown on the plans. The applicant shall address truck loading requirements

for the site.

In accordance with the Section 390-60, ~“Applicability. Traffic impact study shall be submitted to the
Township, as part of a preliminary plan and final plan for any subdivision or land development
application expected to generate more than 250 new trips per day; for residential subdivisions or land
developments containing 15 or more dwelling units or residential lots in the aggregate; or all
nonresidential developments (with the exception of agricultural development) with buildings
containing in excess of 20,000 square feet of floor space in the aggregate; development of any kind
impacting 30 acres of land or more in the aggregate.” Since the development proposes greater than
20,000 square feet of floor space, a Traffic Impact Study is required.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

83.

34.

In accordance with Section 365-8.G., “Where a development site is traversed by existing watercourses,
drainage easements shall be provided conforming to the line of such watercourses. The terms of the
easement shall conform to the stream buffer requirements contained in § 365-101(7) of this chapter.”
The plans reflect several different buffers along the stream. A drainage easement shall be provided by
reference across the required Township buffer in accordance with the ordinance.

In accordance with Section 365-8.L., “Roof drains should not be connected to streets, sanitary or storm
sewers or roadside ditches in order to promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation of stormwater.
Considering potential pollutant loading, roof drain runoff in most cases will not require pretreatment.”
The plans show the roof drains for the existing and proposed buildings connecting directly into the
storm sewer. If requested, we would support a waiver to this requirement, since the roof water is
“clean” and to allow the water to cross the parking area would add pollutants and increase
temperature.



86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

ﬁ Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025

Page 15 of 22

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(6)(b), Wetland buffer delineation, A fifty-foot buffer, measured
perpendicular to and horizontally from the edge of the delineated wetland, shall be maintained for all
wetlands, with the exception of the Cranberry Bog, where the buffer shall be 75 feet measured
perpendicular to and horizontally from the edge of the Cranberry Bog. [n addition, where the 300 feet
of land adjacent to the edge of a delineated wetland has an average upland slope greater than 5%, the
minimum buffer width shall be increased by four feet for each percent of slope at or above 5%, subject
to a maximum cumulative buffer of 100 feet.” The wetland buffers must be identified on the plans.

Per Section 365-11.C., the project site is classified as a Stormwater Hotspot. The design engineer shall
demonstrate the safeguards that will be applied to the site to protect against  groundwater
contamination should there be a mishap or spill.

In accordance with Section 365-12, “Standards for managing runoff from each subarea in the
Brodhead/McMichael Watershed for design storms are shown in Table 365-12. Development sites
located in each of the A, B or C Districts must control proposed conditions runoff rates to existing
conditions runoff rates for the design storms in accordance with Table 365- 12.” The design engineer
must include the S-vear and 25-year desi an storm calculations in accordance with this requirement.

In accordance with Section 365-13.B, “All calculations consistent with this chapter using the Soil
Cover Complex Method shall use the appropriate design rainfall depths for the various return period
storms according to the region in which they are located as presented in Table B-1 in Appendix ALl of
this chapter. If a hydrologic computer model such as PSRM or HEC-1 is used for stormwater runoff
calculations, then the duration of rainfall shall be 24 hours. The NRCS "S" curve shown in Figure B-
1, Appendix A of this chapter, shall be used for the rainfall distribution.” The Stormwater Management
Report utilizes rainfall values from NOAA Atlas 14, Volume 2, Version 3, location Swiftwater, PA™.
We have no objection to the Applicant requesting a waiver from this Section to utilize the rainfall data

Srom NOAA.

In accordance with Section 365-13.C, “For the purposes of existing conditions flow rate determination,
undeveloped land shall be considered as "meadow" in good condition, unless the natural ground cover
generates a lower curve number or Rational "C" value, as listed in Table B-2 or B-3 in Appendix A of
this chapter.” Table 5 on page 13 of the stormwater report indicates that 20% of the existing
impervious surface within the LOD was considered as “meadow” in the calculations. The ordinance

requires all of the impervious to be considered as “meadow". Therefore, the calculations shall be
revised accordingly.

In accordance with Section 365-13.F, “Runoff coefficients (c) for both existing and proposed
conditions for use in the Rational Method shall be obtained from Table B-3 in Appendix A of this
chapter.” The runoff coefficients used in the storm drain conveyance calculations do not appear to
have been obtained from Appendix A. The design engineer shall verify the coefficients.

In accordance with Section 365-14.D, “Storm sewers must be able to convey proposed conditions
runoff from a fifty-year design storm without surcharging inlets, where appropriate and as
supplemented by Subsection C above.” Page 10 of the report states the proposed storm sewer has
been designed for a 10-year storm. The report contains calculations for the 10-year and 100-year
storm events. No less than a 50-year storm shall be conveyed per the ordinance requirement.
Additionally, since the basins are designed for a 100-year storm event, the design engineer shall



93.

94.

O
i

96.

97.

98.

99,

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.l
January 21, 2025

Page 16 of 22

il Pocono Township Planning Commission

confirm that the additional runoff will be conveyed to the basins even if the storm sewer capacity has
heen exceeded and the various discrepancies shall be resolved.

In accordance with Section 365-15.A, “Any earth disturbance must be conducted in conformance with
Pennsylvania Title 25, Chapter 102, Erosion and Sediment Control.” The proposed disturbance is
greater than one acre, therefore, a NPDES Permit from the Monroe County Conservation District Is
required. All correspondence with, submissions to, and NPDES Permit from the County Conservation
District, shall be provided to the Township.

In accordance with Sections 365-17 and 365-19.A.(4), for any of the activities regulated by this chapter,
the preliminary or final approval of subdivision and/or land development plans, the issuance of any
building or occupancy permit, or the commencement of any earth disturbance may not proceed until
the applicant or his/her agent has received written approval of a stormwater management site plan from
the municipality, an adequate erosion and sediment control plan review by the Conservation District
and an NPDES permit from the DEP, if required. The proposed disturbed area is greater than one (1)
acre, therefore an NPDES Permit is required. The Applicant shall provide a copy of the NPDES Permit
and the Letter of Determination of Adequacy from the Monroe County Conservation District, as well
as any correspondence pertaining to the review.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B, “Maps. Map(s) of the project area shall be submitted on twenty-
four-inch by thirty-six-inch sheets and/or shall be prepared in a form that meets the requirements for
recording at the offices of the Recorder of Deeds of Monroe County.” The submitted Stormwater
Management Site Plans (PCSM) are 30"x42" and shall be revised to meet the required size per the
ordinance.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(7), “Soil names and boundaries; along with any limitations
associated with the soil type and the proposed resolution of the listed limitations.™ The soil boundaries
and resolutions must be added to the PCSM plans.

Per Section 365-19.B.(8), the stormwater site plan shall contain “Limits of earth disturbance, including
the type and amount of impervious area that would be added.” The required impervious aiea
information shall be added to the PCSM Plan.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(14), “The total tract boundary and size with accurate distances
to hundreds of a foot and bearings to the nearest second.” The PCSM plans must be revised to provide
this information.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(19), the stormwater site plan shall contain A fifteen-foot-wide
access easement to and around all stormwater management facilities that would provide ingress to and
egress from a public right-of-way.” This easement shall be provided on the plan. In the alternative, the
plan may note a blanket easement for access.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(22), “A statement, signed by the applicant, acknowledging that
any revision to the approved stormwater management site plan must be approved by the municipality
and that a revised E&S plan must be submitted to the Conservation District for a determination of
adequacy” shall be included. This statement shall be added to the Cover Sheet with the other
acknowledgements.



101

103.

i Pacono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025

Page 17 of 22

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(23), the plans shall include “The following signature block for
the design engineer (Pennsylvania-licensed professional engineer);

"I, (Design Engineer), on this date (date of signature), hereby certify that the Stormwater Management
Site Plan meets all design standards and criteria of the Pocono Township Stormwater Management
Ordinance. The word 'certify' is an expression of professional opinion by the undersigned and does not
constitute a guarantee or warranty."

This statement shall be added to the Cover Sheet with the other acknowledgements.

In accordance with Section 365-21.1, "The applicant shall be responsible for completing record
drawings of all stormwater management facilities included in the approved stormwater management
site plan. The record drawings and an explanation of any discrepancies with the design plans shall be
submitted to the Municipal Engineer for final approval prior to the issuance of any occupancy permits,
In no case shall the municipality approve the record drawings until the municipality receives a copy of
an approved declaration of adequacy and/or highway occupancy permit from the PennDOT District
Office (if required), NPDES Permit, consumptive use tracking report, and any other applicable permits
or approvals from PA DEP or the Conservation District. The above permits and approvals must be
based on the record drawings. This means that if there are changes during construction, the record
drawings must be submitted to the PA DEP and the Conservation District for an updated approval if
this was not done previously.” A copy of the NPDES Permit shall be provided to the Township and it
shall be noted on the Plans, that if there are changes during construction, the record drawings must
be submitted to the PADEP and the Conservation District for an updated approval, if this was not done
previously.

In accordance with Section 365-27.A., “For subdivisions and land developments, the applicant shall
provide a performance guarantee to the municipality for the timely installation and proper construction
of all stormwater management controls as required by the approved stormwater management site plan
in the amount and method of payment provided for in Chapter 390, Subdivision and Land
Development.™ A construction cost estimate for the stormwater management facilities shall be
provided to the Township to determine the amount to be required for the performance guarantee. The
performance guarantee shall be provided to the Township as part of the Final Plan submission.

In accordance with Section 365-27.C., “At the completion of the project, and as a prerequisite for the
release of the performance guarantee, the applicant or his representatives shall:

1) Provide a certification of completion from a Pennsylvania-licensed professional engineer,
verifying that all required stormwater management facilities have been constructed according
to the plans and specifications and approved revisions thereto as follows:

"l (Design Engineer), on this date (date of signature) hereby certify that the stormwater
management facilities have all been installed in accordance with the approved Stormwater

Management Site Plan for (name of project) and in compliance with the design standards and
requirements of the Ordinance."

2) Provide a set of record drawings with a certification from the contractor on the record drawings
that states:



104.

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.!
January 21, 2025

Page 18 of 22

Pocono Township Planning Commission
ﬁ I I

"I, (insert signer's name), state that [ am the (insert position) of (insert name of contractor) on
this date (date of signature), hereby certify (1) that [ am duly authorized to make this
certification of behalf of (insert name of contractor), and (2) that all stormwaler management
facilities have been constructed according to the approved plans and specifications and
approved revisions thereto,"”

The certification and drawings shall be prepared and provided as required by this Section.

In accordance with Section 365-29., “Prior to approval of the site's stormwater management site plan,
the applicant shall sign and record a maintenance agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the
Board of Commissioners, covering all stormwater control facilities that are to be privately owned.”
This shall be completed at the time of Final Plan approval and as required by this Section.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND STORM SEWER DESIGN COMMENTS

105.

106.

107.

108.

109.

110.

111.

113.

114.

The Executive Sumimary in the PCSM report identifies the project as being on two (2) separate parcels.
The lots were consolidated in 2024, The sumimary shall be revised accordingly.

Page 10 of the report references what appears to be an incorrect publication for the MRC basin design.
The engineer shall verify the reference.

Page 10 of the report states that flow-guard water quality inserts are provided to capture runoff from
“parking areas and bus circulation areas™; however, there do not appear to be any on the plans that
collect the parking areas. This shall be clarified.

Item 6 of the Maintenance on page 16 (and on the plans) states that the switchgrass clippings must be
disposed of at an off-site location. We recommend this requirement be bolded and/or underlined to
emphasize the importance of not leaving the material in the bottom of the basin.

Page A-4 of the report shows ponding time for the MRC basin. The design engineer shall identify
where these calculations are located within the report.

The MRC basin underdrain orifice size from page A-5 shall be identified on the plans.

The elevations in the Limiting Layer Check on page A-5 do not appear to be correct and shall be
verified by the design engineer.

Swale Calculations on page A-11 are for a 10-year storm. Since the collecting storm sewer is required
to be designed for at least a 50-year storm, the swale shall also be designed to convey that same 50-
year flow to the storm sewer.

The rip-rap table on page A-13 does not match the table on the E&S plan. The discrepancies shall be
corrected.

The Outlet Devices in the Summary for Pond 2P: Pr MRC Basin has some inconsistencies with the
plans. The 18" round culvert is shown in the summary at elevation 1186.00, but the plans show it at
1185.00. The 6.0 Vert. Orifice is 1188.70 in the summary, but 1190.00 in the plans. Also, 48”x48”



115,

Le.

117.

118.

i Pocono Township Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/I'inal Land Development Plan Review No.]
January 21, 2023

Page 19 of 22

Horiz. Orifice is not dimensioned or otherwise represented on the plans. The design engineer shall
review and revise accordingly.

The design engineer shall clarify the outflow of the base drain in the Summary for Pond P2 as we are
unable to determine where this outflow is considered.

Appendix C is labeled as “100-ycar Emergency Spillway HydroCAD Model Run”. The actual
spillway design calculations must also be included within this section.

There are several inconsistencies between the pipe caleulations in the report and the Storm Sewer
Profile Sheets C-211 and C-212. Lengths and slopes shall be consistent in both number and the number
of decimal places. The design engineer shall review and revise as necessary.

Storm sewer calculations must be provided for:
a. Existing Building to ST12;
b, ST33 to ST26;
c. OSST25+t0ST23

Inlet drainage area plans shall be provided.

The drainage area maps were included in the report in 117x17" format. These are not to scale at this
size and shall be provided in their fuil-size format in future resubmissions.

The point of interest (POI 1) shall be labeled on all drainage area maps.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

122,

127.

The Township Land Development Plan (LDP) No. 1421 shall be placed in the lower right-hand corner
of all plan sheets and provided on all subsequently submitted documents.

The List of Drawings on the Cover Sheet shall identify the plans to be recorded.
The site must be shown on the location map on the Cover Sheet.

In the Site Utility Companies list on the Cover Sheet, the sanitary sewer utility is Pocono Township,
not Pocono Township Sewer Authority and shall be revised accordingly.

The Stormwater Management Signature Block for Township Approval on the Cover Sheet is not
necessary and shall be removed.

Note 2 on Sheet C-101 references the MCTA Lot Consolidation Plan. The latest revision date for the
“MCTA Lot Line Adjustment Plan” plan is March 25, 2024 which shall be added to the notation.

The Phase | Environmental Assessment referenced in Note 9 on Sheet C-101 shall be provided to the
Township for review.



129.

,._.
(OS]
(O%]

136.

137.

138.

140.

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No.1
January 21, 2025

Page 20 of 22

§I Pocono Township Planning Commission

The Geotechnical Report referenced in Note 10 on Sheet C-101 shall be provided to the Township for
revicew.

The tract boundary and building setback lines on Sheet C-101 do not match the boundary information
on the recently recorded “MCTA Lot Line Adjustment Plan”™. The current plan submission shall be
revised to match the recorded plan.

The existing lot area in the Zoning Data table on Sheets C-101, C-121, and C-122 shall be revised to
match the “MCTA Lot Line Adjustment Plan”.

The Utility Company Contact Information on Sheet C-101 shall be revised to indicated “Pocono
Township™ instead of *Pocono Township Sewer Authority™.

A ~Keyplan™ is shown on Sheet C-101 and other sheets which appears to represent the existing and
proposed buildings. Since this is a Civil Site plan set, the keyplan should represent the site itself, not
just the buildings. We recommend the keyplan be revised to include the site for clarity.

Sheet C-122 identifies a proposed 127 wooden fence. Details for this fence must be provided in the
plan set.

Two (2) 6™ pedestrian gates are proposed in the new chain link fence on Sheet C-122. It is
recommended that a double gate, wide enough for maintenance equipment, also be provided since
Swale S-1 is located outside of the fence perimeter.

The hatching symbol used for the existing rock and gabion walls shall be added to the legend on Sheet
C-121 and all other sheets where the hatching symbol is used.

The grading plans must be revised to show spot elevations at critical grade points including, but not
limited to, high points, low points, building corners, and ADA routes.

The symbol used for the proposed utility pole on Sheet C-132 does not match the symbol in the legend.
The discrepancy shall be resolved.

Top dimensions for the “Type C” inlet shall be provided. It is noted that the plans propose a 6™ curb
reveal which must be considered in either the grading and/or the C top dimensions.

The FloGard Detail on Sheet C-502 indicates installation only on Inlet ST12. Utility Plan Sheet C-151
shows the FloGard on Inlets ST11 and ST12. The detail on Sheet C-808 indicates installation on Inlets
STS, ST6, ST7, ST, ST9, ST10, ST11, and ST12. These discrepancies shall be resolved.

The design engineer shall provide additional information on sizing requirements and efficiency
calculations on the Oil Water Separator shown on Sheet C-502.

The PCSM plan Sheets C-803 and C-804 show a hatched area in the bottom of the MRC and the
Forebay. This hatch type must be included in the plan legend.



144,

146.

147.

148.

149.

151.

ﬁ Pocono Towngship Planning Commission

MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Prefiminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
January 21, 2025

Page 21 of 22

The PCSM plan Sheets C-803 and C-804 show a hatched area along the berm between the Forebay
and the MRC. This hatch type, which appears to be rock, must be included in the plan legend and a
detail provided.

The MRC underdrain must be shown in plan view on Sheet C-804 of the PCSM plans and on the Utility
Plan Sheet C-151.

The emergency spillway elevations shall be labeled in the plan view on Sheet C-804 as well as on the
Grading Plan Sheet C-133.

The MRC water surface clevations shown in the table on Sheet C-806 do not match the calculations in
the PCSM report. The inconsistencies shall be corrected.

The PCSM Underdrain Detail on Sheet C-806 should clarify any geotextile to be used around the
aggregate envelope as recommended in DEP’s MRC guidance document.

The tabulated information under the MRC Basin Profile on Sheet C-806 identifies the outlet pipe invert
to be 1186.00. Per the plans and calculations, it appears this should be 1185.00. The discrepancy shall
be resolved.

Trash Guard Hoods are identified on Sheet C-808 to be installed on Inlets ST4, ST4A, ST5, ST16,
ST17, and ST18. These hoods are not shown or labeled anywhere else in the plan set. The inlets
requiring the hoods must be labeled accordingly in plans views and the hood information provided
wherever the FloGard insert information appears throughout the plan set.

The Permanent Emergency Spillway detail on Sheet C-808 reflects a 100-year water surface elevation
for the “lower tier” which does not match the calculations in the report. This discrepancy shall be
resolved.

There is a leader line note on the Permanent Emergency Spillway that states “RECP-5A TRM Spillway
Protection”. A detail for this protection shall be added to the plans and the spillway lining shown in
plan view throughout the plan set. Additionally, the spillway for the forebay appears to be rock, not
geotextile, based on the plan view depiction. This shall also be clarified.

Dimensions shall be added to the anti-seep collar detail on Sheet C-808.

Note 2 of the BMP Installation Sequence on Sheet C-809 states “Where indicated, install impervious
geomembrane clay liner”. The MRC Basin Profile on Sheet C-806 shows an “impervious
geomembrane” under the forebay. A detail for the geomembrane shall be added and the extent of the
liner shall be shown in plan view.

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with the
intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the number and nature of the
comments in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.



Pocono Township Planning Commission

Iﬁ MCTA Transit Facility Expansion

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
January 21, 2025
Page 22 of 22

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to approval
of the Preliminary/Final Land Development and Subdivision Plan.

[n order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing 1tem by item, their action in responsc to cach of our comments.

If you should have any questions, plcase call me.

Sincerely,

. f \ l("-\\ .“_“/ R ‘\ o /:\ ) \
Jon'S. Tresslar, P.E.,, P.L.S.
Towrniship Engineer

JST/arm

cc: Jerrod Belvin — Pocono Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Richard Schlameuss — CEO, MCTA (rschlameuss@gomcta.com)
Geoffrey Kolva, P.E. — Stantec (Geoffrey.Kolva@stantec.com)
Kristina Heaney — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G: Projects' POCOR0OY90:Correspondence: Review Letters' MCTA Transit Facility Exp. LD_Plan.Review01.doex



szoz/st/t

§e0ez/91L/9 Gzoz/9Le GZ02/91/6 ¥2/91/6 paroiddy verelis ye0z/Li8 | leuld/uiled eQ pueq (¥2/8/L) uonippy /G Buiping youes 02804-000d | 0Evl
[eroiddy [euonipuo) °
§20z/e/9 Geoz/eie Ge0z/ele 2/¢/6 panoiddy VIN LA [euly Japuior j07 Jspuior 107 Jysp A 09.04-000d | L2yl
G20Z/9C ye0z/9/LL G20z/9/S ¥2/9/5 veisly y20z/0z/8 | leuld/uwield eQ pue (€2/o1/01) emep Juswdojpraq o3| ¥BELOEZZ [62904-000d | Sibl
|eaoiddy [euonipuo) | |eaoiddy [euoripuo)
Joumo Jad piemio} ¥202/12/S v20z/1ere v202/12/8 gziieg €Z/0L/L| €202/1/8 [eutd meQ pue (€z/01/y) BuisnoH eakoj/dw3 IMO| ¥60Z0EEZ [029048-000d | Zibh
Buinow jou Joa01d |eroiddy [euonipuo)| [eaoiddy [euoripuo)
¥20z/8LIL ¥20z/8Lly £2/81/0L €2/0L/0L| Y20z/8ly | [eud/uleld eQ pue (zz/Lzi9)| ¥WsBLOEZZ [11904-000d | 0OVL
|eaoiddy/ [euoiypuod| [eaoiddy [euonipuo) (ea1qw33) py seddis uapjos [eydsoH pooyioqybiaN
veiLioL G20z/9/8 §20Z/9/S G20C/9/LL €29/LL €¢/0L/L| €202/0L/L | [euldjwiRld qns Jofep (¢z/8z/E) uoisinpans Jofeyy 155019 48LL0EZE 86€1
paniaday UoISUB)X3 |eroiddy [euonipuo)| [eaoiddy [euoyipuo)
a8y ¢e0T/LLIy| ceoziee/e [eulq qng Jouly (0ouoy s0r) 119 310y 10LE| u69L0ELT VIN e6el
|eaoiddy [euonipuod)| [eroiddy [euonipuo)
12/9reL Vefee/LL| 120e/aLiLl | [eulduieid }A8Q pue|(1z/6/8) uonippy ¥00Q Bulpeo Z10A G6-8 Inaised Youes| M/SL0ELE €8EL
leroiddy [euonipuon| |eaoiddy euonipuo) [e1218WWOY
{emelpyipm Buipuad 61/Se/z leroddy| 610z/l2/z | IRUI/LIRI] neQ pue (8172z/01) siuawpedy juiod ajiiasiaue | HI000E9) LLEL
10} papuaWW023Y [enuapIsay
0202/0z/. panoiddy| 610z/6/c) leroxddy | 6L0z/2/L1 | leuldiwliaid maq pue|  (61/2Z/b) I 9SBY UONOB)0Id Jajawilad Jnd)sed OUeS| HEBOOEG) 29t
10} papuUsWILLOIBY [BI10JAWIWOY
veise/L ye0z/9/LL ¥202/9/8 S2I9re 0202/94/% panoiddy|  810z/€Z/L leroiddy| 0zoz/6l/e | [RUI/WIRYd eQ pueT (LL/91/8) 112 pue [sjoH aueT buiuuny| MLS00ELL 09l
pajsanbay uoisusxg 0) papua)x3 [eaoiddy 10} papualWosy [EI0JBWWOY gLEL
SeLMY LL8LITL €C0Z/61/L | [euljjwipld eQ pueq Aueydso souodod vdyS| Her00eLl el
0} papus)x3 [eoiddy | [eaoddy [euonipuo)
1102//9 panoiddy L102/8/G leroiddy| /102/5/S | [eudwlald maq pueT| (91/zi/z1) Buluspim win aauq AisAods( indjsed youes| Hy9z0EL veel
10} papuaLLLL0IaY [EI0JBWIWIOY
L10z/€fy paroddy | £)0z/gl/E leroiddy| Z10z/0L/E | leuwiald aQ pueq (91/2/01) BuE wnL 8AuQ A19A03SIQ Jnd)Sed Joues Leel
10§ PapUBLILIOIaY [BIJ8WWOY
d3a40J3 LON - TVAOUddY TVNIJ/NITI¥d ¥O TVNI4 TVYNOLLIANOD|
¥2/91/} panoiddy STLULL aAejua] ayd (€z/ez/01 P9y uonedljddy) Qyd 8By auL| HpSLOELZ 88¢l
ue|d sAlejua | Ay Buiuueld
IVAOHddY NV1d JAILV.LNIL Q¥d]
£€2/81/6 [erolddy’ €2/L1/6 [eroddy| €202/2/6 | [euld/wiald A8( pueT (czive)L) selin wisam| dvZL0gee 18€1
“Aeulwald ‘puon|  ABUIwald ‘puod
£2/81/6 leroxddy €2/ /6 lerolddy| €202/02/6 wijid A8Q pueq (12192121 )(12/L2/6) Y8810 0U020d-dnoio uappels| HOYLOELT 89¢1
eUIBld ‘puo)|  AJEUNlald |puod [BI0JBWIWOY
eIl leroddy|  gz/ge/e leroddy| pzoziel/8 wipid }A8Q pue] (1zigz)| Wivlogie [91908-000d| €L€1
AJEUIaId 'puo)|  AJeullaid ‘puod [E1JBWIWIOD (ued "wipp1d) asnoyaiep) peoy Jauepm-s 340D
IVAOUddV AYVNINITId TVYNOLLIONOD
Sjuswwon ajeq uopesdxg uopesidxg Ruagjenorddy 9og| Auagjenoiddy 1y | [euldjwijaid adA] (ayep aaueydasae) swe oaloid *ON ‘ON ‘ON Joy
uolepI0day 0} 'O\ € 0} 'O 9 ‘PUBIWIOIDY Dd | Juswwo) uopesjddy foid AT | foid weL | dmi
1s9je]
S207/07/10

SNLVLS NV'Id dIHSNAMO.L ONODOd




520z/St/t

¥e/9L/el pawuag vefeel 1ewea od | ve0e/sieh Janem HOS3Y ElIA Ulejunopy . 02014-000d

TVINZA ¥3IAIVM LININDOT3AIA ANV

v2/81/1 ) paroiddy verzhLL AT FENE) “ou3 "dinb3 jood “ju3 del [juu| JoleMyIMS - 000+4-000d
leaoiddy 9d

¥2/12/0) paroiddy ziS10l ¥202/6/01 FEIE Juswede|day Jezeald Joualx3 £G4 Youes 0v604-000d
leaouddy 0d "

¥2/12/0} paroiddy ¥2ISLI0) ¥202/94/6 ENE) (119 o1y 661€) Salpadoid Juswisaau] 91N 01604-000d
[eaoiddy Od -

TVAOUddY ¥3AIVM LNIWJOTIATA ANV)

G20z/91/6 Ge0z/91/9 Gz0z/9Le) v2/9kfe) panoiddy VIN yeozfeelL L [eutd 'quo) 107 Jspuior j07 08j0sied } 09604-000d| GevL
G202/9L/6 GZ02/91/9 Geoz/Lrel ¥Z/94/e) parosddy VIN yeozree/L) [euty ‘quiog 107 Japuior 07 ys109 ) 0S604-000d | ¥EVL
G202/91/9 §eoz/9Le G202/9L/6 ¥2/91/6 panoiddy ¥el6/6 ¥202/S/6 [eutq qng Jouiy B/2) (fe1L. UBAYINS) UoISIAIPGNS Joul Yioeg/abpiy sionboyj 01804-000d | eVl
[eaoiddy [euonipuo) i
SjuaWwWon ajeq uopesidxg uonelidx3g Auagjenoiddy 9og| Auagjenoiddy 1ape | [euidjwijeid adk] (eyep aouejdadoe) awep yoafoid ‘'ON ‘ON "ON Joy
uonepioday O} 'o0N € 0} 0N 9 ‘pUsWILIOddY Jd | juswwod uopjeayjddy foid AT | ford WL | cdmL
jsaje]
ST0T/0T/10

SALV.LS NV1d dIHSNMOL ONODOd



szoz/st/t

¥202/0g/0} yesLie velLiie ye0z/eL/s | leuldfueld suod jo7[ (€¢/01/01) "PlIoSUOD g UOIPPY Jejuad 30UaIaJU0D [LOW] HEEZOEEZ [€2908-000d | 6ivl
|eroiddy [euopyipuo) | [eaciddy [euopipuor B JA8Q puE]
€z/ielol €Z/8L/0L €2/0L/0L| €202/8L/6 [euty ‘gqns JoulN (€2/11/6) 5120 ¥S Aieay epied| Y1£20eET VIN :1343
|eaoiddy/ [euonipuo)| [eaoiddy [euopipuo))
£2/0¢/8 €2/6L/9 €2/cL/9| €202/9/9 [euty qng Jouly (€z/8/6) sune4/saadold ave| ¥9120£€Z VIN eivl
|eroiddy [euonipuo)| |eaciddy [euonipuo)
€TILLIB £2/912 €2IET/L| €20Z/LLIL | leuld/wiRld 1A8Q pue (czisz/L) Buipiing 0}, aur Zgg Inejsed youes| H1610€ee yovl
leaoiddy [euopipuon)| [eaoiddy [euor)ipuo?
£2/08/L1 £2/0c/e €TIELT| €20Tivil [eul4 gng Joui (zerz1Liz)) s0eds |IElay Zeld elnsiauue]| HG0Z0£Ze VIN Lol
|eroiddy [euonipuo| |eaciddy [euoripuo)
ceozfel [447A%0]% ¢e/LLjoL) 2¢eoz/s/ol [euty qng Jouly (zz/6/G) wawsnipy aurT 1077 AIPANS JOUI 12A00D| M¥BLOEZZ VIN 66€1
|eroiddy Jeuonipuo)| [eaoiddy [euoyipuo)
ceozrel Tz/919 €20C/ETIS| 2e0z/8L/S [eul4 gng Jouly (ze/8212) PeOY 3[EPY0OIG JO UOISINPANSaY UOSIET| M9.L0EZZ VIN L6EL
|eaoiddy [euonipuoy)| |eaciddy [euolipuo)
220218 (441414 2e0z/8e/e| 2eoeiveie [euly A8Q pue (cz/o1/1) uoiippy asnoyaiem sajeaiS| HELLOELE VIN v6el
leaoiddy [euonipuod| |eaoiddy [euonipuo) [e1018WW0Y
€2/LLI0L £2/91C £2/6/1 | €C0Z/1TIe) eq pue/g/g) (uuf ajjisiauLe [-emepn) siauped §,A8Q aue Auayd| u6.10€2z [S2904-000d | £6€)
[eaoiddy [euoipuod| [eroiddy [euonipuo)
¢e0z/e 12/02/21 99y LZIELIZL 99| L2Og/ELiT) 1AeQ pueq (12/82/9) uoisuedx3 abpoT Jlom Jeal9| MpLL0E0Z 16€l
|eaouddy [euoiyipuo))| [eaciddy [euonipuo) [eIoIBWIWOY
€Z/LLI8 €292 €2Z/ET/L| ¢202/9L/8 | leuldauliaid }A9Q pue (1Zrez/11) ebelols piog €88 Ineised youes| MggL0ELe 06€L
|eaoiddy [euopipuod| [eaoiddy [euoiipuod [e128WwoY
¥ZIore (4414 220T/LLIv| 2eoz/eeie [euld gns Jouly (12/21/01) uolieplosuoY J0'1/ 10Ul 1S3 OllesseA| HEILOELZ VIN e1:1]
|eaoddy [euoipuod)| [eaoiddy [euonipuo)
120z/0L 129118 12/6/8 [eAoidde [euld/wiaId Ipans UOISIAIPGNS 107 G UOljeS duing aAY djjiasuokeg| ZGLOELT VIN ¥8eEl
panoiddy 909 PapUBWWOIaY
ce0z/ierel 12ieis 12/82/9 leroiddy| 120Z/L2/L wiald eQ pue (1Z/82/9) UOISIAIPGNS JoUI PielliiH esopn3| ¥6YL0ElT YIN LLEL
|eroiddy [euonipuod papuaLIWoay [enuUapISaYy
€2/9L/LL 22/919 ¢eiSely| 22oeiozy | [euldjwild \A8Q pueq (1zre116) (12/v1/90) Jejog Jolemyims| ¥GLL0€0Z [+2904-000d | GiEl
|eaouddy [euoiyipuod| [eroiddy [euopipuod [eIDBWWo)
£2/62/9 12/02/2) 93y L2/ELITL 93y L20T/ELieL wipid eQ pue (12101/G) 91-1 1 Ud ¥oeqiawe) je abpuypoN| HE800€E6H vLEL
[enoiddy [euonipuod| [eaoiddy [euopipuo) [enuspisay
¥ZIoLIS 1e/gLioL 12/92/2| 1202/82/6 | [euld/wipid naQ pue atawapur] dwed| ¥p0L0£0z [12904-000d| 2i€)
|eaoiddy [euonipuod)| [eroiddy [euonipuog
Leozieeie 0202/0Z/L| 020z/2z/9 leroddy | 0Z0Z/6H/9 | [eululpld aQ pueq (0z02/80/90)| ¥S0L0€0Z 0L€1
panoiddy DOg| 10} papuswWIWody [eysnpu| Bpig Buiphoay g sisep pijoS G8-d Inaised Ljoues
€2/12/6 6102/LZ/0L| 610Z/E2/6 leroddy| 6L0Z/GH/0L | IBUIALIBID na( pueq (61/01/9) qe7 333 8/-q oueg| HOBOOEE! y9elL
panoiddy 90g|  .0j papuswwodsy [e1DJaWWoY
¥202/92/6 velsiiL VeIELIS| YTO0T/L/9 |leuld pasIASY |  A8Q pueq (€2/L1/6) 11 "Ud Joiemyms Jojuds| up6LO0Eee [€1909-000d | £82h
[erosddy Jeuoipuod| |eaoiddy euonipuo)
2202/6 aiele CeiyLiE| 2T0e/9Lie | euldjwiaid naQ pue (zzivz/) (o101 ossedel] | 89/20e€) [L2908-000d| Lz
[enoiddy [euonipuod| [eoiddy [euoyipuo)
a3a023y|
sjuswwo) ajeq Kuagenoiddy 9og| Auagrenoiddy 197 | [euldjwifeid adA) (syep 22ueydasae) swep joafoid ‘oN 'ON "ON Joy
uoijepioday ‘pUBIWIOIDY Id | Juswwo) uopeaijddy foid AT | foad WL | tdmy
Jseje]
ST07/0T/10

SNLVLS NVId dIHSNAAO.L ONODOd



ST0T/ST/1

741174 ¥2/12/0L panoiddy yeisiioL ¥20z/vLi0L | [euldjwiiaid meq pue (vzis1i01) 1S @s0Y Op), - K1 02604-000d| €evl
lerciddy [euonipuod B

yeneiL ¥2/2/01 panoiddy VIN yeoe/ee/6 [eul4 "qui03 107 (1o 1yBI7 6122) UONEpOSUOD J0T] UOSIEN N 08804-000d | eyl
G20z/9/) 21110} panoiddy VIN yeoeise/e feuly 'quiod 107 uojjeuiquiog o7y Hnod ufejuno4 3 08/04-000d | 62¥l
¥202/6Z/01 Y2/€/6 panoiddy VIN ve0e/ol/8 [euld 'quioj jo uojjeuiquiod 307 seiHadold 0ueo0d buizewy B 0.L04-000d | 82ZvL
verelL vzieely| veozi8ly leroidddy| yzoz/9z/e [euly Jsnipy| (usunsnipy aury jo7) uoReulquIod 107 VLOW| 6EZ0SEC (22904-000d | 1evh

|eroiddy [euolypuo) [euolipuo) aurm 107
¥20z/ve/6 vy VIN yeoz/seie [euld ‘Pljosu03 107 uojiepijosuo jo7 usxBunoA| YeEz0Eez [82904-000d| Ozvi

|eAoiddy [euonipuod
SjusWWoy ajeq uopesidxgy uonesidxg Kuagjenoiddy 9og| Auagjanoiddy 1epe | [eurdjwijeid adf) (ayep aauejdasae) swep joafoid 'ON ‘'ON "ON Joy
uopjepi02ay 0} 'O € 0} 'O 9 'puUBWIWOdDY Jd | Juswwo) uopesrjddy foid AT | foad gLl | -dmy
3s9jeT
ST0T/0T/10

SALVLS NVT1d dIHSNAMO.L ONODOd




szoz/st/t

SNLVLS NVId dTHSNAMOL ONODOd

UMEIpYJIM uoiealjddy €20Z/0L/1 [euty ang Jouiy (€z/6/1) ans Joulp peoy Jaddis uap|o9 gze ) | 245810EZe VIN (1543
€ereLis €e0e/9/01 wipld Weq pue (zz1s/8) @snouaIep peoy Usppe)s § a100| HE6L0ECE VIN 90v)
UMBIPYYIM uoneoljddy
¥ZITHIT UMBIPUIIM 220e/9¢/6 | [euldwiald | waq pue (ze/8/8) abpiy auL| upSL0ELT VIN 88€l
uonealddy @7
ceoziel 1202/91/6 feuly qng Jouly (12192f2))(12/Le/6) UoISIMPGNS Joul eloueld| H09L0ELZ VIN 98¢}
p,oal "|dde melpyym
0] UONEDNION
NMVYQHLIM
celLLoL CZILLI0L [BIURQ| TT0TrTlie wipld ang Jofep (cz/8/8) uoisinpang (zunw) buisselg| ¥z610£22 VIN Sovl
papaley 008 papusWWosy
1¢/12/90 le/ve/s [elusq)  L202/8/L wijpid WeQ pueq SjuswisaAU] IUoyY 3 OBiZ| H1Z10E02 VIN
pajoaley 904 papuaIWoIay SaY/WWOY
pajeaddy| 12/12/90 leives lelusg)  ejep wipid }A8Q pue (€1/€1/80) 1aq pueT ¢ Jo7 uosjedo| 35620€1) VIN el
pajosley 009 PapusWIWoday | umouyun [BI0J3WWOY
@3iN3a
SjusWwWoy ajeq uonesndxg uonelidx3 Auagjenoiddy 9og| Auagjenoiddy 18ye | eurgjuijaid adA) (ayep asuejdasae) awe afoid Y *ON ‘ON Joy
uojjepiooay 0} 'Ol € 0} ‘0N 9 ‘pusWIWIoddy 9d | Juswuwon uopesijddy foid A7 | ‘foaid weL | dmp
3s9je]
ST07/0T/10




ST0T/ST/1

€1/1 poa1 ‘xa Aep 06 GeozieL L Ge0e/z/9 | Geoe/elis | Ge0e/49 | leuldunpEld eQ pue (vz/6/21) uoisuedx3 Ayjioed Jisuel L VLOW 3 06604-000d| eyl
GeoziELL G20Z/Ly | Seoc/oke | Geoc/Elly | leulduipld eq pueT (Sz/c1/1) a1 papuswy Jejog Jajemyimg } ¥290-000d | VS§.i€L
geozieH L GeozZ/Ly | Seoc/oL/e | S20Z/El/y | leuldwiield | uonepljosuo) (Sz/e1/1) 18)ua) Juang [3joH del | R 070L4-000d| 8tvlL
1071M8Q pue]
uonelapisuo) Japup sueld Aeurunaid
$/C) uo GeozieH L §eozivLL Geoe/ele | G2oe/obe | S20T/9e leuld qngs Jouiy (vz/8/2) } 05.04-000d| 9yl
p,o81 UOISUB)XS oW ¢ (Peoy IIH 150d 02G-61.G) UOISIAPANS Jouly uosdwis
¥/¢1 P93l uoisua)xgy Geoe/eLL ¥e0e/sicL G2oz/Ly | szoziolie | G20Z/8Liy [euld qns Jouiy (vergiw)| Hezzoeez [0£904-000d| Lovl
UOISIAIPGNS [8)0H puelg [enq - uswdojeaaq pue |19
UONBIBPISUOY) JSpU[g Sueld 1euldf
neq pue feuly Jejos peoy ywwng - 060L4-000d| 6¢ehl
yeioLel geoe/l) JaeQ pueq 8NUaAY UNLoIS 6E1-/E - 0L0L4-000d| 9¢evl
P98l g# ueld yoiys
yeoc/8/LL neQ pueq uoisuedx3 abejiA sulfou| - 0/604-000d| 8.€1L
¥2oe/LLie eq pue [910H Juaisuel sauadold ouodod aaisnox3| Heyz0eye [6L908-000d| 22kl
£20¢/62/8 jheq pueT peoy JajleH 01¢ sawoq AuoulieH| ¥8zZ0£€2 LIyl
£202/€/S ne(Q pueT 1190 3 7192 Ansinbog AunA Jo spuef ¥6120€€2 08¢l
¢coei6liL JneQ pueq (sewoH Ayenp aisserD) saiadord S 9 3 @ J0 SpueT| ¥68LOETT eovlL
‘ang Jofeyy
[AAVALA4L) aq pueq abpry stonbou|| 48810€7C 414"
‘gng Jole
1202/5/8 neQ pueq awdojaaaq pue sjuswypedy 1190 34 8082| U8LLOE0Z 08glL
0202/s/9 a8 pueq (eoeur) dnoio) juswijsaaul Hyguay | MOr00E.L
[EIIBWWOY)
Sueld Yas
[SUETTT) Ausg/anoiddy pajgel IENER] SN BUA Ddise| sesdx3 |jeuiduunaid adAL (e12p 2ouEIda0oe) aweN 198(o.d ‘ON ‘ON "ON JoY
"09Y4 Od Sunssiy 1se| weuwwo) | 009 1sel poLiad uopednddy ford @ | loidwgl | cdmi
15918 MaINY
ST07/07/10

SALVLS NV1d dJIHSNAMOL ONODOd



s20z/st/t

_ | |

SIUOISSILLLIOD JO pleog 104 1S17 Wa)| Sulpuad

_ _ |

UOISSILLWIOY Suluue)d 104 1S17 Wwa)| Bulpuad

9s[g1euonIpuo) ‘suondeox3 jeloadsg

v/LL| Sziels) [eroxdde | G2OZ/6/TL ¥20oz/LioL Geoz/ele | Geoe/oLe | Scoe/e/e | leuld/wiield JA9( pueq (¥z/gL/G) slusuipedy pesjsyoolg - 71904-000d| €cvl
p,281 UOISUB)Xd ABp (6| 10} PapuBLLIOIaY
uoisioag 0049 w:_uc&g
[SUETTTS) Aua/anoiddy paige | J8ne SN BUA DdIse]| sesdx3y |jeuijauunald adA] (e12p @oueydadoe) awen 193[01d ‘ON ‘ON "ON Joy
"09H Od Sunssly 1se| wawwo) | oogisel poLad uopednddy ‘ford 1@ | loidwgL | dmi
1S81E7 M3INSY
ST0T/0T/10

SALVLS NV1d JIHSNAO.L ONODOd



	2-10-25_Agenda_Planning_Commission
	Agenda Packet Items 2-10-25

